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(& Cg SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No: 01/2024/NQ-SCIEC-DHDCD Hanoi, March 28, 2025

RESOLUTION OF

THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
% Pursuant to:
—  The Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;
- The Charter of Organization and Operation of the Company;
~  The Business plan and strategic objectives of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company for 2025 and
the following years;

- The Minutes of vote counting and Meeting Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders dated March 28, 2025.
RESOLUTION
Article 1: Approval of the list of the Presidium, the Ballot Counting Committee, the Meeting
Agenda, and the Meeting Regulations of the General Meeting.

Article 2: Approval of the 2024 Business performance report and the 2025 Business plan, as
presented in Proposal No. 01/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HDQT.

Article 3: Approval of the 2024 activity report and the 2025 activity plan of the Board of Directors,
as presented in Proposal No. 02/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HDQT.

Article 4: Approval of the 2024 activity report of the Audit Committee, as presented in Proposal
No. 03/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HDQT.

Article 5: Approval of the audited separate and consolidated financial statements for 2024; the
2024 profit distribution plan; the 2024 Board of Directors' remuneration; and the estimated Board
of Directors' remuneration for 2025, as presented in Proposal No. 04/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HPQT.
Article 6: Approval of the public offering plan as presented in Proposal No. 05/2025/TTr-SCIEC-
HDPQT.

Article 7: Approval of the amendment and supplementation of the Company’s Charter as
presented in Proposal No. 06/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HDPQT.

Article 8: Approval and authorization for the Board of Directors to decide on certain matters under
the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders as presented in Proposal No. 07/2025/TTr-
SCIEC-HDPQT.

Article 9: Approval of the election results and recognition of elected Board members for the 2025-
2030 term as presented in Proposal No. 08/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HDQT.

Article 10: This resolution is fully approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company at the meeting on March 28, 2025. The Board of Directors,
Audit Committee, Executive Board, and relevant functional departments of the Company are
responsible for implementing this resolution.

Pidu 11: This resolution takes effect from March 28, 2025.

Recipients?

- As per Article 10;

- Stock Exchange (for reporting);

- Disclosure on the Company's Website;
- Board of Directors' records.
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Hanoi, March 28, 2025

i MEETING MINUTES
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY

A. Company Name, Date, Venue, and Participants of the General fVIeeting:

 1F

Company Name: SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (“Company” or “SCI E&C”)

Head Oifice: 3rd Floor, Tower C, Golden Palace Building, Me Tri Stieet Me Tri Ward, Nam
Tu Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam.

Registration Number: 0500574676.

. Date : 09:00 AM, March 28, 2025

. Venue:

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders (“AGM”) will be conducted in an online
meeting format with electronic voting. Therefore, sharcholders and authorized
representatives may attend the online AGM from any location of their choice, where they
can log in and participate in the meeting and voting process in accordance with the
Company's instructions.

The designated meeting venue for the Chairman, Presidium, and Organizing Committee will
be the Meeting Room of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company, 3rd Floor, Tower C, Golden Palace
Building, Me Tri Street, Me Tri Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi.

. Participants:

Shareholders listed in the record of eligible attendees as of February 25, 2025, per the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC).

The Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company.

The Audit Committee.

The Executive Boards.

5, Agenda of the General Meeting:

— Lo

)

. Opening Ceremony and Verification of Shareholder Eligibility

Mr. Duong Thanh Trung, on behalf of the Organizing Committee, deciares the reasons for

b mneeting and introduces the attending delegates.

Ms. Quach Thi Thanh Thuy, Head of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee,
presents the verification report as follows:

As 01 09:00 AM, March 28, 2025, a total of 37 shareholders and authorized representatives
are present, representing 16,866,629 shares, accounting for 55.3160% of the total voting
shares of SCI E&C toint Stock Company.

Based on the Enterprise Law and the Company's Charter, the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders is deemed valid and legally qualified to proceed.
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II. Introduction and Approval of the Presidium, Secretarial Team, Ballot Counting
Committee, Meeting Agenda, and Regulations

. On behalf of the Organizing Committee, Mr. Duong Thanh Trung introduces the

Presidium of the AGM, comprising:

- Mr. Phah Thanh Hai - Chairman of the Board of Directors — Chairperson
of the AGM

- Mr. Luu Minh Thanh - Board Member, cum Iiircctor — Member
- Mr Caoi Lu Phi Hung - Chief Accountant — M:embcr

The Ballot C{}leﬂtiﬂg Committee consists of the following members:
- Mr. Nguyen Van Tho - Head of the Ballot Counting Committee
- Mr. Le Duy Tung - Member

. Mr. Duong Thanh Trung, on behalf of the Organizing Committee, presents the Agenda of

the General Meeting and the Meeting Regulations (as attached to these Minutes).

Voting Results on Approval of the Presidium, Ballot Counting Committee, Meeting Agenda,
and Meeting Regulations. Voting was conducted electronically, and the results are as
follows:

— Total number of votes issued: 38 votes, corresponding to 17,188,109 shares accounting
for 100.0000% of the shares attending the Meeting.

— Total number of votes collected: 36 votes, corresponding to 16,866,495 shares
accounting for 98.1289% of the shares attending the Meeting,.

— Total number of votes not collected: 02 votes, corresponding to 321,614 shares
accounting for 1.8711% of the shares attending the Meeting.

No.

Number of Votes and Corresponding Percentage of Total
Voting Shares Attended and Voted

Resolution
No

Valid Invalid | Approved | Disapproved Opiiiion

16,866,495 0| 16,718,661 0 147,834

List of Presidium
Members

100.0000% 0% | 99.1235% 0% 0.8765%

16,866,495 0 | 16,718,661 0 147,834
List of Ballot
Counting Committee
Members

100.0000% 0% | 99.1235% 0% 0.8765%
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Number of Votes and Corresponding Percentage of Total N
: Voting Shares Attended And Voted
No. Resolution st —
. . g No
I e & "
Valid nvalid | Approved | Disapproved Opinion
Agenda of tile 2025 16,866,495 0| 16,718,661 0 147,834
3 Annual General
Meeting of
Shareholders 100.0000% | 0% | 99.1235% 0% | 0.8765%
Meeting Regulations 16:856:122 0| 16,718,661 0 147,834
4 of the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of
Shaeholics 100.0000% 0% | 99.1235% 0% | 0.8765%

Thus, with the corresponding approval vote rate for each issue as above, the Meeting
unanimously approved the Presidium List, Ballot Counting Committee List, Meeting
Agenda, and Meeting Regulations.

4. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai, Chairman of the Board of Directors, appointed the Secretariat
Committee, consisting of two members:
- Mrs. Quach Thi Thanh Thuy - Head of Secretariat
- Ms. Dang Nguyen Trang Nhung - Member

IT1. Presentation of Reports

I. Mr. Luu Minh Thanh, Director and Board Member, presented the 2024 Business
Performance Report and the 2025 Business Plan.

2. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai, Chairman of the Board of Directors, presented the 2024 Activity
Report and the 2025 Activity Plan of the Board of Directors.

3. Mr. Nguyen Quang Thien, Chairman of the Audit Committee, presented the 2024 Audit
Committee Activity Report.

IV. Presentation of Proposals to the General Meeting

Mr. Cao Lu Phi Hung, Chief Accountant, presented the following proposals for approval by the
General Meeting of Shareholders:

« Proposal No. 01: Approval of the 2024 business performance report and the 2025
business plan.

» Proposal No. 02: Approval of the 2024 activity report and the 2025 activity plan of the
Board of Directors.

o Proposal No. 03: Approval of the 2024 activity report of the Audit Committee
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Proposal No. 04: Approval of the audited separate and consolidated financial
statements for 2024; Profit distribution plan for 2024; Remunciation for the Board of

Directors 1 in 2024 and the estimated remuneration for 2025.

e Proposal No 05: Approval of the plan for the additional publu oﬂeung of shares.

o Proposal No. 06: Approval of amendments and supplements to the Company's Charter.

e Proposal No. 07: Approval of the authorization for the Board of Directors to decide on

specific matters within the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

e Proposal No. 08: Approval of the election of Board of Directors members for the 2025-

2030 term:

V. The General Meeting proceeded with discussions and feedbaék on the reports and
proposals presented, addressing key issues requiring approval by the General Meeting of

Shareholders.

Shareholder
No.

Question

Response Provided by the Presidium

SCIL.003082

Apart from the Bac Ai
Pumped Storage Hydropower
Project, how many additional
projects does the Company
plan to bid for in 2025?

Are there any specific projects
in the review, and where are
they located?

Given that Vietnam has
recently eased some legal
policies regarding the
electricity market, how does
the Company assess domestic
project opportunities?

Thank you for your question. E&C is one of
the seven contractors in the consortium that
won the bid for the Bac Ai Pumped Storage
Hydropower Project. This is a major project
by EVN Group and the first pumped storage
hydropower project in Vietnam. SCI E&C is
honored to participate. We appreciate your
close attention to this matter.

Regarding our 2025 plan and our current
initiatives, we are also bidding on several
domestic  energy, hydropower, and
renewable energy projects. At the same
time, we are actively exploring international
opportunities, particularly in Laos, where
we are bidding on additional projects. We
continue to focus on our core business areas,
including hydropower, wind power, and
technical construction projects.

Regarding the second part of your question,
Based on the current legal policies, the
Company believes that late 2025 and early
2026 will be a boom period for energy
projects. This presents an opportunity for
E&C to continue bidding on and
participating in major projects both
domestically and internationally. Thank
you.

SCL.003082

The Company has not paid
cash dividends to shareholders
for a long time. Could the
BOD provide guidance on the
Company's cash dividend
payment plans in the coming
years?

In recent years, the Company has prioritized
reinvesting profits to expand business
operations, aiming to establish a foundation
for long-term sustainable growth. As a
result, cash dividend payments have not
been made regularly. However, the BOD
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Shareholder
No.

Question

Response Provided by the Presidium

acknowledges that dividends are an essential
component of shareholder value.
Therefore, in the coming years, the
Company will aim to develop a stable,
transparent dividend policy that balances:
o The need for reinvestment to drive
growth,
o Maintaining ‘a strong financial
position, and
e Ensuring long-term shareholder
benefits. '
The decision to pay cash dividends will be
considered and implemented when cash
flow conditions, investment plans, and
profitability reach appropriate levels. The
Company is committed to providing full and
timely updates to shareholders in future
information disclosures.
We sincerely appreciate our shareholders'
trust and continued support.

SCL.003506

Why is the pre-tax profit over
7.5 billion VND, but the
corporate income tax (CIT)
paid is nearly 7.48 billion
VND, resulting in a net profit
after tax of only over 23
million VND?

Dear Shareholders,

According to the provisions of Decree
132/2020/ND-CP dated November 5, 2020,
the Company has engaged in related-party
transactions. As a result, the deductible
interest expense when calculating corporate
income tax is capped at 30% of EBITDA.
This has led to an increase in taxable income
and, consequently, a higher corporate
income tax obligation.

Thank you.

VL. Report on the Voting Results for the Reports and Proposals at the General Meeting

1. The voting results for the Reports and Proposals are as follows

- Total votes issued: 38 votes, corresponding to 17,188,109 shares, representing

100.0000% of the shares participating in the Meeting,

- Total votes collected: 35 votes, corresponding to 16,989,295 shares, representing

98.8433% of the shares participating in the Meeting.

- Total votes not collected: 03 votes, corresponding to 198,814 shares, representing

1.1567% of the shares participating in the Meeting.

Based on the Reports, Proposals, and discussion feedback, the General Meeting proceeded

to vote (via electronic voting) and approved the following items:
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Number of Votes and Corresponding Percentage of Total
Voting Shares Attended and Voted

No. Resolution

: i { No
Valid Invalid | A 1
alic nvali pprovec ﬂlsapprovcd Opinion
Proposal No. 01: ”
16,9 9
Approval of the 2024 | 8205 9| 16,666:231 Bl =%a064
1 | business  performance
report and the 2025 100% 0% | 98.0984% | 0% | 1.9016%
business plan. :
Proposal No. 02 = ! '
Approval of the 2024 16,989,295 0| 16,666,231 | - 0 323,064
2 | activity report and the
2025 activity plan of the o o ' ,
Board of Directors. 100% 0% | 98.0984% 0% | 1.9016%
Proposal ~ No. 03 16,989,295 0| 16,666.231 0| 323.064
3 Approval of the 2024
activity report of the
Audit Committee 100% 0% [ 98.0984% 0% | 1.9016% =
Ng
Proposal No. 04: Ny
Approval of the audited %C
separate and | 16,989,295 0| 16,666,231 0 323,064 '0C
consolidated  financial NY
statements for 2024; :
Profit distribution plan <«
4 for 2024; Remuneration =
for the Board of
Directors in 2024 and o o o
i i 100% 0% | 98.0984% 0% | 1.9016%
remuneration for 2025,
Proposal No. 05: 16,989,295 0| 16,610,131 56,100 | 323,064
5 Approval of the plan for :
the additional public
offering of shares. 100% 0% | 97.7682% 0.3302% | 1.9016%
Proposal No. 06:
Approval of | 16,989,295 0| 16,666,231 0 323,064
6 | amendments and
supplements  to  the
Company's Charter. 100% 0% | 98.0984% 0% | 1.9016%
Proposal No. 07:
Approval — of  the | 16,989,295 0| 16,666,231 0| 323,064
7 | authorization for the
Board of Directors to
decide on  specific 100% 0% | 98.0984% 0% | 1.9016%
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Number of Votes and Corresponding Percentage of Total
Voting Shares Attended and Voted

No. Resoll,:ltion
i No

Valid | Invalid | Approved | Di i
1 nvali pprove isapprovec Opinion

matters  within  the
authority of the General
Meeting , of
Shareholders.

Accordingly, with the corresponding approval percentages for each issue as presented
above, the General Meeting has unanimously approved the Reports and Proposals presented at
the Meeting. '

VII. Approval of the Election Results and Recognition of the Elected Board Members for
the 2025-2030 Term as follows:

- Total votes issued: 38 votes, corresponding to 17,188,109 shares, accounting for
100.0000% of the shares attending the General Meeting.

- Total votes collected: 35 votes, corresponding to 16,989,295 shares, accounting for
98.8433% of the shares attending the General Meeting.

- Total votes not collected: 3 votes, corresponding to 198,814 shares, accounting for
1.1567% of the shares attending the General Meeting.

- Total valid votes: 35 votes, corresponding to 16,989,295 shares, accounting for 100%
of the shares attending and voting at the General Meeting,

- Total invalid votes: 0 votes, corresponding to 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the shares
attending and voting at the General Meeting.

List of Elected Board Members:

No. Full name Number of votes
1 PHAN THANH HAI 17,387,499
2 LUU MINH THANH 17,387,243
3 MAI THI VAN ANH 16,578,904
4 NGUYEN DUY TOAN 16,547,594
5 LE HUY THANH 16,547,533

VIIL Approval of the Draft Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders:

1. Ms. Quach Thi Thanh Thuy, Head of the Secretariat, presented to the General Meeting the
content of the Draft Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the
Draft Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint
Stock Company.

2. The General Meeting proceeded to vote electronically on the content of the Minutes and the
Resolution.

The voting results are as follows:

- Total votes issued: 39 votes, corresponding to 17,194,109 shares, representing
100.0000% of the shares participating in the Meeting.
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- Total votes collected: 34 votes, corresponding to 16,667, 815 shares, representing
96. 9391% of the shares participating in the Meeting.

- Total voth not collected: 05 votes, corresponding to 526 294 shares, representing
3.0609% of the shares participating in the Meeting.

Number of Votes and Corresponding Percentage of Total
Voting Shares Attended and Voted
No. Resolution
: ; . No
Valid Invalid Approycd Disapproved Optuton
Minutes of the 16,667,815 0| 16,610,131 _ 0 57,684
1 Meeting, l\fJIeeting

Resolution. 100% 0% | 99.6539% 0% | 0.3461%

Accordingly, Wlth the approval percentages as stated above, the Minutes and the Resolution
of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company
have been duly approved at the General Meeting.

IX. Declaration of The End of the General Meeting

Mr. Phan Thanh Hai declared the end of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company at 1 AM on March 28, 2025.

ON BEHAFT OF
SECRETARITAT

7

Quach Thi Thanh Thuy Phan Thanh Hai
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S{l Report on the business performace in 2024 and the business plan in 2025

REPORT

ON THE 2024 BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND THE 2025 BUSINESS PLAN

(Submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)
PART 1: BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

I. KEY ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS

No. | Indicator Unit Plan Actual Completion
Rate

Total business performance | Billion o

1 value VND 1.850 1.046,63 56,57%

) Inw?stment in construction | Billion 936.1 2924 3.12%
equipment VND
Billion

- 0,

3 | Revenue VND 1.800 1.007,95 56%

4 | Collected amount Bidion 1,690 949,75 56,2%

ollected amo VND " 5 2270
) . Billion

5 | Consolidated profit before tax 36,1 T 20,78%
VND
. Million

6 | Average income of employees 21.3 21,2 99,53%
VND

7 | Manpower Person 900 713 79,22%

8 | Charter capital Billon 431,967 | 304,914 70,59%
VND

9 | Dividend payment % 5% | Unexecuted

II. GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF THE IMPLEMENTATION BUSINESS PLAN
IN 2024

1.
1.1
v

v

1.2

Implementation of project progress
Nam Sam 3 Hydropower Project:

Installation of electromechanical equipment:

Successfully completed the installation of all three generator units (100%).

Operation line:

Fully completed and handed over to the Employer.
Nam Mo 2 Hydropower Project:

Completion: 46%

Auxiliary works: 100% completed

Main dam: 72% completed

Auxiliary dam: 43% completed

Spillway: 65% completed

Intake: 30% completed

Headrace tunnel: 50% completed

Page 1/8
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S Cl Report on the business performace in 2024 and the business plan in 2025

b)

Powerhouse: 54% completed
Switchyard: 0% completed
Tailrace channel: 15% completed
Hydraulic mechanical work and lifting equipment: 18% completed
Nam Sam 3A Hydropower Project:
Auxiliary works: 25% completed
Nam Mo 1 Hydropower Project
Construction equipment is being mobilized.
Nam Lum 1 Hydropower Project:
Energizing of unit H2 in March 2024.
Energizing of unit H1 in September 2024.
Construction and installation of Phong Dien Industrial Park
Completed 100% of the Bidding Package and handed over to the Employer in April
2024.
Maintenance of Canan 1 and 2 Hydropower Plants
Construction road from Canan 1 Plant to Canan 2 Plant (8km): 100% completed in
February 2024.
Construction road from Canan 2 Plant to Chieu Luu Junction: 100% completed in
March 2024.
Investment
In 2024, the Company invested in vehicles and equipment for the construction of
Nam Sam 3, Nam Sam 3A, Nam Mo 2 projects,... with an investment value of 27.25
billion VND.

. Executive Management

Business arrangement and innovation:

Step by step implementing the contracting mechanism for departments in the
Project.

Putting Bravo R8.3 business management software into operation for the following
modules: Purchasing, Warehouse Management, Asset Management, Financial and
Accounting Management.

Extending ISO 9001 - 2015 certificate, ISO 45001:2018 certificate, renewing ESG
certificate and construction activity capability certificate.

Planning and technical work:

Strictly managing the volume plan, construction progress, construction measures,
announcing timely warnings;

Well managing, coordinating with relevant departments in the preparation stage for
project implementation: making measures, construction progress, supply planning,
etc..

Page 2/8
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S{I Report on the business performace in 2024 and the business plan in 2025

. Strictly controlling the request, supply, and consumption of supplies and materials at
the projects;

- Making technical proposals for tenders and quotations;

- Closely supervising the implementation of safety and environmental regulations at
the projects constructed by the Company.

¢) Economics contracts

- Ensuring the strictness and legality of contractual terms;

- Planning project profit schedule until end of the year and end of the project ;

- Preparing and monitoring payment schedules for subcontractors to ensure cash
flow;

- Searching for qualified subcontractors to supplement the resources of the Company;

- Preparing financial proposal documents, calculating costs for bidding packages of
the Company participating in bidding;

- Planning costs and monthly controlling costs planned.

d) Finance - Credit - Accounting

v" Finance:

- Planning monthly disbursement schedule for appropriate financial plans;

- Concentrate resources to expedite capital, debt recovery progress to reduce
borrowing pressure on the Company;

- Balancing capital to ensure production and business activities of the Company.

v' Accounting:

- Organizing accounting and recording accounting books in accordance with current
regulations;

- Managing and filing invoices, documents and books in accordance with regulations;

- Calculating and paying monthly salary and welfare expenses for employees in
accordance with the regulations of the Company;

- Timely making payment internally and payment to suppliers to ensure normal
production and business activities;

- Preparing and issuing financial statements in accordance with standards and on
time;

e) Marketing and bidding:

. Implementing the business plan in the fourth quarter, reporting for executing the
business activities of the Company Managers;

- Executing bidding for several projects in Vietnam and Laos and has signed Award
Contracts such as Nam Mo 1 Hydropower Project, Nam Sam 3A Hydropower Project,
Bac Ai Hydropower Project.

. Promoting communication, researching and developing communication strategies to
improve communication efficiency, focusing on effective targets.
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S{l Report on the business performace in 2024 and the business plan in 2025

f) Human Resource:
v" Recruitment: In 2024, the Company:

- Recruited 356 new employees, of which 54 employees are indirect workers, 302
employees are direct and serving workers;

- Terminated labor contracts for 408 persons.

v Training: implementing internal and external training programs.

g) Management of Materials — Mechanism.

v" Mechanism management:

- Timely supplying materials, inspecting and supervising the repair and maintenance
of vehicles and equipment of projects;

- Making an efficiency report on using vehicles and equipment to assess the
efficiency of use, repair, and maintenance costs for vehicles of projects, and of each
equipment;

- Planning and monitoring the monthly use of the instrument and tools, making a
report on the inventory for each object.

- Settling fuel for vehicles and equipment.

h) Unscheduled supply and repair

v' Supply:

- Promptly procuring goods for projects;

- Expanding and directly importing goods manufactured by foreign companies;

- Actively surveying the goods market, maintaining and establishing good
relationships with reputable suppliers, ensuring saving transaction time, supplying
goods on schedule, quality at the most reasonable prices;

v" Unscheduled repair:

- Regularly updating the list of vehicles and equipment needed for repair;
coordinating with the project corrective maintenance team to come up with
appropriate repair plans;

- Minimize the number of vehicles and equipment suddenly out of operation,
regularly checking and maintaining to promptly detect signs that may lead to failure
and come up with timely solving plans;

- Updating new and effective repair methods, regularly fostering and improving the
skills of repairers.
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PART 2: BUSINESS PLAN IN 2025

I. TARGETS OF THE 2025 BUSINESS PLAN
s Actual Plan
No Content Unit 2024 2025
1 | Total business performance value Ei:(l;;%n 1.046,6 1. 25758
Billion
2 | Investment value VND 27,25 100
Billion
3 | Revenue VND 1.021,6 1.312,8
Billion
4 | Collected amount VND 949,7 950
. Billion
5 | Consolidated profit before tax VND 75 8,0
: Million
6 | Monthly income VND 212 21.5
7 | Manpower Person 713 689
; Billion
8 | Charter capital VND 304,91 457,37
9 | Dividend payment % Unexecuted 5%
IL. MISSIONS AND GOALS OF KEY PROJECTS

Based on ongoing projects, the Company continuously makes efforts to meet the

progress and quality objectives of ongoing projects, specifically as follows:

1.

Nam Sam 3 Hydropower Project:

Complete the COD of the entire Project.

Complete the repair of existing issues and hand over to the Employer.
Nam Mo 2 Hydropower Project:

Construction part: 100% complete.

Equipment installation: 100% completion of Units installation, ready for inspection
and grid energization.

Nam Sam 3A Hydropower Project:
Auxiliary works: 100% complete
RCC Main Dam: 28% complete
Powerhouse: 15% complete

Nam Mo 1 Hydropower Project:
Auxiliary works: 100% complete
Main Dam: 20% complete

Box culverts: 10% complete
Headrace Tunnel: 30% complete

Powerhouse: 10% complete
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III. Measures to ensure the completion of business plan in 2025

1.

Strategic Management

Completing the organizational structure of the Company.

Adjusting the organizational structure of the Project according to the new model to
improve the roles, responsibilities, and work efficiency of departments at the
Project.

Implementing the contracting mechanism for departments in the Project.

Human Resource Management

Balancing and arranging personnel in the office and project leanly and efficiently.
Diversifying recruitment channels.

Completing and improving processes, regulations, statutes and policies related to
human resource management in accordance with reality, contributing to improving
labor productivity.

Marketing and bidding

To complete the business plan in 2025 as well as the plans for the following years,

marketing and bidding measures shall be promoted effectively, such as:

Strengthening marketing, searching activities for projects, focusing on market
expansion, approaching new Employers;

Improving bidding capacity, preparing Company profile, documents meeting the

requirements of the projects and the Employers, market trends;

Continuously improving legal competency of the Company eligibility to participate

in bidding packages of large projects;

Investment and improvement of construction equipment capacity

The planned investment value in 2025 is 100 billion VND.

Engineering - Construction - Safety:

Building and improving the capacity of the engineering team including the

following departments:

v Planning department: Coordinating with the project to make a specific and
detailed implementation plan;

v Project management department: Monitoring, expediting, supervising and
announcing necessary warnings for the implementation of the project;

Paying special attention to the acceptance test to complete the sales target as well
as reduce the uncompleted rate as the lowest at the projects;

Strictly controlling the quality, volume, construction measures and construction
progress according to the signed Contract and suitable budget for each work;
Strictly maintaining and implementing the construction supervision and
occupational safety in the HSES construction site.

v" Building the HSES system;
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v Training and coaching at projects.
Economic work:

Focusing on controlling the performance of contracts signed with Employers to
prevent risks, announce warnings and plans to solve problems in a timely manner;

Developing completed, reasonable, and accurate budget for all construction works
before construction implementation. At the same time, controling the use of budget
for each work during the construction process according to the reporting/controlling
periods;

Focusing on capital collection and settlement of the remaining works of the
construction which have been constructed;

Finance - Credit - Accounting

Making financial plans and cash flow plans to adjust the receipt and payment
structure, ensuring Company financial safety. Ensuring a reasonable and effective
spending plans, bringing the Company high profits;

Focusing on completing the financial management mechanism. Proactively
approaching and seeking fundrasing channels in the financial market are
fundamental and the cost of using capital shall be considered as an efficiency part
of investment and business performance;

Analyzing financial situation and business performance of the Company based on
the Financial Statements, thereby understanding financial situation of the Company
to come up with appropriate strategies;

Focusing on collecting receivables, especially overdue debts to ensure capital
sources for business activities of the Company;

Provisions will be made for bad debts in accordance with regulations and specific
responsibilities will be assigned to closely follow up on debt recovery;

Advising Board of Directors of the Company on considering and selecting the the
most economical and effective structure of using capital;

Machinery and equipment management

Timely suppling materials, inspecting and supervising the repair and maintenance
of project vehicles and equipment;

Making reports on the efficiency of using vehicles and equipment for usage
efficiency, repair and maintenance costs of project vehicles and of each equipment;
providing solutions and warnings for low-performance facilities;

Monthly planing and monitoring the use of instrument and tools, making report on
the inventory by subjects;

Controlling the fuel settlement for vehicles and equipment.

Supply

Strengthening searching for material sources in Laos to serve the construction of
Nam Sam 3A, Nam Mo 1, Nam Mo 2 Projects to ensure progress and efficiency;
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- Developing a detailed and accurate procurement plan based on the initiation plan,
construction plan for each Project/Work so that the procurement process is easily,
actively implemented.

- Strengthening the connection of warehouses among constructions, ensuring
reasonable goods circulation;

- Continuously expanding the supplier list, looking for long-term stable goods
sources, meeting project requirements in terms of type, quantity and quality;

- Monitoring the fluctuation forecast of key and significant value goods in terms of
volume and price needed for production and proposing appropriate supply plans.

Above is the Report on business performance in 2024 and business plan in
2025. Submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company for consideration.

Best Regards!

Send to:

—  General Meeting of Shareholders;
- BOM;
—  Filing HRD/IAC/ BOM.
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Report on the activities of the audit commitiee in 2024

REPORT
ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE IN 2024
(Presented at the 2025 Annual General Shareholders' Meeting)

I. Regarding Organizational Structure and Personnel:

Throughout its operations, the Audit Committee (AC) has strictly adhered to the legal regulations and
the Company’s Charter on operational principles and governance. Specifically:

+ The Audit Commmittee consists of 2 members:

I.  Mr. Nguyén Quang Thién - Chairman of the Audit Committee, Independent
Member of the Board of Directors :

2. Mr. Nguyén Tai Son ~ Independent Member of the Board of Directors

+ The remuneration, operating expenses, and other benefits of the Audit Committee and each

of its members comply with the provisions of the Enterprise Law and the Company's regulations,
Specifically:

Full name Date of Appointment as Annual Remuneration
Independent Board Member

Nguyén Quang Thién April 2021 96.000.000 VND

Nguyén Tai Son April 2019 96.000.000 VND

I1. Activities and Recommendations of the Audit Committee:

Through two regular meetings with a 100% attendance rate and unanimous agreement among
members regarding the activities to be implemented between meetings (with a 100% voting approval
rate), the Audit Committee has made the following conclusions and recommendations on key issues:

- The Audit Committee has advised on the establishment of the Internal Audit Department
(IAD), consulting the IAD on action plans and other professional issues.

- Supervision of the financial statements, operational status, and financial situation of the
Company.

- Evaluation of internal transactions, internal control systems, and risk management
processes within the Company.

- Oversight of the Board of Directors, CEO, and other executives of the Company.

- The Company should constantly update and improve the system of governance,
management, and internal operational procedures, as well as the operation processes of
departments, to standardize activities and enhance the internal control system.

- As the Company continues to develop and execute large-scale projects, it is important to
develop a fundraising plan that aligns with the scale and strategic direction for the future.

- The Executive Board and management personnel of the Company should continue to
support, coordinate, and engage with the Audit Committee to closely monitor the
Company's business situation, financial status, minimize risks, and improve control
efficiency and operational effectiveness to achieve the assigned goals and tasks.
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Report on the activities of the audit committee in 2024

ITI. Results of activities in 2024

1. Supervision of Financial Reports, Operations, and Financial Status of the Company:

The recording, storage of documents, accounting information system, and preparation of
accounting books by the Company have been carried out in accordance with current
regulations and in compliance with Accounting Standards, Accounting Regulations, and
relevant legal provisions.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented truthfully, in accordance with
Accounting Standards and current regulations, with no material misstatements that could
distort the financial reporting results.

The selected auditing company ensures reliability, accuracy, and adherence to the auditing
timeline.

The recommendations of the independent auditor have been acknowledged, reviewed, and
implemented by the Executive Board.

Decisions issued by the Board of Directors are valid, within the scope of authority, and comply
with the disclosure requirements for listed companies.

The financial situation has remained healthy, with key indicators such as payment capacity,
capital structure, and operational capability maintained at stable levels.

2. Evaluation of Internal Transactions:

Transactions between the Company, its subsidiaries, and companies controlled by the
Company with over 50% charter capital with members of the Board of Directors, the General
Director, other executives of the Company, and related persons were closely examined and
fully disclosed in the audited financial statements. Transactions between the Company and
companies in which members of the Board of Directors, the General Director, and other
executives of the Company were founding members or managers within the last 3 years before
the transaction were also closely examined and fully disclosed in the audited financial
statements,

The Company has adhered to relevant regulations concerning approval authority and has made
full disclosures in accordance with legal requirements.

3. Evaluation of the Company’s Internal Control System and Risk Management:

The Board of Directors and the Executive Board have consistently monitored market
developments, forecasted, and developed appropriate business plans to mitigate risk of
environmental, economic, legal, industry-specific, and other risks;

The Executive Board has conducted reviews, updated, and issued new regulations, including
the organizational structure and operational regulations for departments, to improve the
effectiveness of the internal control system.

4. Supervision results on the Board of Directors and the Executive Board:

4.1. Regarding the Board of Directors

The activities of the Board of Directors during the year were focused in accordance with the
resolutions of the General Shareholders' Meeting and in compliance with the Company’s Charter
and Governance Regulations;
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Report on the activities of the audit committee in 2024

— The Board of Directors has effectively performed its function of guiding the Company's
development through planning, controlling, and adjusting strategic decisions. The critical
decisions of the Executive Board were analyzed, reviewed, and consulted by the Board of
Directors to provide appropriate solutions for the Company.

4.2. Regarding the Executive Board

— The Executive Board has diligently implemented the resolutions of the General Shareholders'
Meeting and the Board of Directors, performing their duties and responsibilities in accordance
with legal regulations and the Company’s Charter. |

5. Evaluation results of the coordination between the Audit Committee and the Board of

Directors, the General Director, and the shareholders:

In 2024, the Audit Committee received close cooperation and was provided with favorable
conditions to carry out its duties by the Board of Directors, the Executive Board, and the Company’s
management team. This was facilitated through the provision of reports and documents related to
the governance situation, business activities, and the Company’s financial status.

The above is the report on the activities of the Audit Committee in 2024. The Audit Committee
hopes to continue receiving trust and support from the Board of Directors, the Executive Bo ard,
and the shareholders to ensure the effectiveness of activities in 2025.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE AUDIT
~  General Shareholders’Meeting; COMMITTEE
~ BOD; CHAIRMAN

—  Saved: HR/AC/ BOD.

Nguyen Quang Thien

Trang4 /4




~ SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY
The 3rd floor, Tower C, Golden Palace building, Me Tri Street, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Tel: 024 3386 8243 | Email: enc@scigroup.yn | Website: www.seigroup.vn

No.: 01/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HPQT Hanoi, March 28, 2025

PROPOSAL
(Approval of key indicators for the 2024 business performance, and the 2025 business
plan)

Respectfully to: The General Meeting of Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint Stock
Company

Pursuant to:

The Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14, passed by the National Assembly on June
17, 2020, and effective from January 1, 2021, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QH135,
passed by the National Assembly on January 11, 2022, and effective Jrom March
1, 2022;

- The Securities Law No. 54/2019/QHI14, passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, amended by Law No.
56/2024/QH1S5, passed by the National Assembly on November 29, 2024, and
effective from January 1, 2025, and the related implementation documents;

- The Charter of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company;

- The internal governance regulations of the company, the operational regulations

of the Board of Directors;

The Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the key indicators of the 2024 business
performance and the 2025 business plan (Report attached).

Respectfully submitted for the consideration and approval of the General Meeting of
Shareholders!

Sincerely thank./.
CC/ ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF
e 7Report on the 2024 business performance, DIRECTORS
the 2025 business plan..

nan Thanh Hai

SCIECAD-QT.01-BM.04a (V02.00-01/01/2018)



p— SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY
The 3rd floor, Tower C, Golden Palace building, Me Tri Street, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Tel: 024 3386 8243 | Email: enc@scigroup.vn | Website: www.scigroup.vn
No.: 02/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HPQT Hanoi, March 28 ,2025
PROPOSAL

(Approval of the 2024 Activily report and the 2025 Activity plan of the Board of
Directors)

Respectfully to: The General Meeting of Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint Stock
Company

Pursuant to:

The Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14, passed by the National Assembly on June
17, 2020, and effective from January 1, 2021, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QH15,
passed by the National Assembly on January 11, 2022, and effective from March
1, 2022;

- The Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14, passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, amended by Law No.
56/2024/QH15, passed by the National Assembly on November 29, 2024, and
effective from January 1, 2025, and the related implementation documents;

- The Charter of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company;

- The internal governance regulations of the company, the operational regulations

of the Board of Directors,

The Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the 2024 activity report and the 2025 Activity
plan of the Board of Directors (Report attached).

Respectfully submitted for the consideration and approval of the General Meeting of
Shareholders!

Sincerely thank./.

C% ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF
- "The 2024 activity report and the 2025

Activity plan of the Board of Directors

SCIEC.AD-QT.01-BM.04a (V02.00-01/01/2018)



7~ SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY
The 3rd floor, Tower C, Golden Palace building, Me Tri Street, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Tel: 024 3386 8243 | Email: enc@scigroup.vn | Website: www.scigroup.vn

No.: 03/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HDQT Hanoi, March 28, 2025

PROPOSAL

(Approval of the 2024 Activity Report of the Audit Committee)

Respectfully to: The General Meeting of Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint Stock
Company

Pursuant to:

The Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14, passed by the National Assembly on June

17, 2020, and effective from January 1, 2021, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QH1 35,

passed by the National Assembly on January 11, 2022, and effective from March

1, 2022;

- The Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH]14, passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, amended by Law No.
56/2024/QH135, passed by the National Assembly on November 29, 2024, and
effective from January 1, 2025, and the related implementation documents;

- The Charter of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company;

- The internal governance regulations of the company, the operational regulations

of the Board of Directors, the operational regulations of the Audit Committee;

The Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the 2024 Activity Report of the Audit Committee
(Report attached).

Respectfully submitted for the consideration and approval of the General Meeting of
Shareholders!

Sincerely thank./.

CC/f ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
= The 2024 Activity Report of the -
Audit Committee

>\ COMPANY. /-
‘ Hai

SCIEC.AD-QT.01-BM.04a (V02.00-01/01/2018}



3rd Floor, Tower C, Golden Palace Building, Me Tri Street, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

g E SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Tel: 02 4 3386 8243  Email: enc@scigroup.vn| Website : www.sci group.vi

No: 04/2025/NOr-SCIEC-HDQT Hanoi, March , 2025
PROPOSAL

(Approval of the audited separate and consolidated financial statements for 2024; Profit
allocation plan for 2024; Board of Directors’ remuneration for 2024 and estimated remuneration
for 2025)

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to:

- Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on June 17,
2020, effective from January 1, 2021, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QH 15 passed
on January 11, 2022, effective from March I, 2022,

- Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, amended by Law No.
56/2024/QH 15 passed on November 29, 2024, effective from January 1, 2025, and
related guiding documents;

- Charter of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company;

- Internal corporate governance regulations, Board of Directors' operational
regulations, and Audit Committee's operational regulations,

The Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company respectfully submits for
approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders the following matters:

1. Approval of the audited separate and consolidated financial statements for 2024
The Board of Directors proposes that the General Meeting of Shareholders approve t
2024 separate and consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by MOO
AISC Auditing and IT Services Co., Ltd., Branch. The audited reports include:

Date of Issuance
No. | Report Separate Consolidated
financial financial
statements statements

1 | Balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 February 28, February 28,
2025 2025

2 | Income Statement for 2024 February 28, February 28,
2025 2025

3 Cash flow statement for 2024 February 28, February 28,
2025 2025

4 | Notes to the financial statements for 2024 February 28, February 28,
2025 2025

(The audited separate and consolidated financial statements for 2024 are disclosed by the
Company in accordance with legal regulations and attached to the AGM documents.)

II. Approval of 2024 Profit allocation plan

NO Items Proportion Amount

1 | Profit before tax 7,502,733,237
2 | Current corporate income tax 7,479,421,885




SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY
3rd Floor, Tower C, Golden Palace Building, Me Tri Street, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi
Tel: 02 4 3386 8243|  Email: enc@scigroup.vn| Website : www.sci group.vn

NO Items Proportion Amount

3 | Deferred corporate income tax -
4 | Net profit after tax (4)=(1)-(2)-(3) 23:311.352
5 | Deductions from net profit after tax -
6 | Distributable profit (6)=(4)-(5) 23,311,352
7 | Allocations to corporate funds -
8 | Profit after allocations (8)=(6)-(7) 23,311,352
9 | Undistributed profits of previous years 186.564.047.938
10 | Total remaining profit transferred to next year:

186.587.359.290

(10)=(8)*+(9)

L. Approval of Board of Directors' remuneration in 2024 and estimated remuneration

for 2025
1. Remuneration for the Board of Directors in 2024
. Number x
No. Position Months Salary/month Amount
1 | Chairman of the Board 1%12 15,000,000 180,000,000
7 | Vice Chairman Full-time 1x12 15,000,000 180,000,000
3 | Member of Board £%54 b 8,000,000 288, 000
B Total 648,00
: ™
2. Estimated remuneration for the Board of Directors in 2025 rocK ‘
NO Position Numiberx Salary/month AmW
Months y 0,\“
1| Chairman of the Board 1x12 15,000,000 1807000,000
3 | Member of Board 4x12 8,000,000 384,000,000
Total 564,000,000
Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval./.
Best Regards!
ON BEHALF OF
Recipient :

—  As stated above ;

BOARD.O DIRECTORS
v —-.-‘\\
— Save Board of Directors, HR .

Phan Thanh Hai



- SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY
3rd Floor, Tower C, Golden Palace Building, Me Tri Street, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Tel: 043386 8243 | Fax: 0433719676 |  Website: www.scigroup.vn

No: 05/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HPQT Hanoi, March 28, 2025

PROPOSAL
(Approval of the public offering of additional shares)

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to:

— Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH 14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic
of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QH15 passed on January 11,
2022;

— Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on November 26, 2019,
amended by Law No. 56/2024/QH]15 passed on November 29, 2024,

— Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP issued by the Government on December 31, 2020);

—  Charter of Organization and Operation of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company;,

— The audited separate and consolidated financial statements for 2024.

The Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company respectfully submits for approval by the
General Meeting of Shareholders the following:

L. Approval to cancel the implementation of the public offering of additional shares to
existing shareholders as outlined in Proposal No. 07/2024/TTr-SCIEC-HPQT dated
April 12,2024, which was approved at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
via Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-SCIEC-DHDCD dated April 12, 2024.

2. New public offering plan to increase charter capital in 2025

Stock name: Shares of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company m&‘?—'
Stock code: SCI //:37 SCIE
Stock type: Common stock l@[ OINT S
Par Value: 10,000 (Ten thousand) VND/share \\»%sCOMP
Charter capital before offering; 304,914,090,000 VND \\\\“4&
Total number of shares before offering: 30,491,409 shares |

Number of Shares to be offered: Expected 15,245,704 shares

Exercise ratio 2:1

Offering Price 10,000 VND/share

- Supplement working capital for ongoing
Purpose of using capital raised from the | projects.

offering: - Invest in construction equipment and
machinery.

Number of shares after offering: Expected 45,737,113 shares

Charter capital after offering: Estimated 457,371,130,000 VND

(4 detailed plan is attached.)

3. The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to:

— Determine the appropriate timing for the public offering in accordance with the Company's
needs on the basis of ensuring compliance with legal regulations.

— Decide on the detailed content of the offering plan and/or amend, supplement, or change the
offering plan when necessary based on the actual situation of the Company or at the request



of the competent authority to ensure the successful offering as well as the Company's capital
mobilization is carried out in accordance with the law, ensuring the rights of shareholders and
the Company;

Adjust the exercise ratio (Rights Issue) accordingly to ensure that the total number of shares
offered does not exceed the number of shares expected to be offered as approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders in this plan (the offering ratio depends on the number of
shares in circulation at the time of implementing the Share Offering Plan and the actual number
of shares offered);

Decide on a plan to ensure that the offering of additional shares meets the regulations on the
maximum foreign ownership ratio at the Company;

Appoint an underwriting organization, negotiate, and execute underwriting agreements, and
complete necessary procedures to secure underwriting for the capital increase issuance, if
required.

Choose the appropriate time to finalize the rights exercution date and other milestones related
to the implementation of the public offering of additional shares according to regulations.
Carry out the issuance of shares and decide and carry out procedures for distributing shares
according to the issuance plan;

Decide on the handling of fractional shares and unsubscribed shares

Determine the specific allocation of raised capital and make necessary adjustments regarding
fund utilization, disbursement timelines, and purposes in accordance with the Company’s
actual situation.

Implement amendments and supplements to the Company Charter (regulations on charter
capital and number of shares) and related provisions in the Company Charter according to
actual issuance results;

Carry out procedures to adjust the Company's Business Registration Certificate after the end
of the offering;
Carry out necessary procedures to adjust information on the number of securities regi
the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC) and register fprili
changes at the Stock Exchange where the Company's shares are listed with the entingmum
of shares actually issued in accordance with the provisions of law; ANY
[n addition to the above contents, the General Meeting of Shareholders unanimously a
the authorization for the Board of Directors to decide on all other related issues ari
process of implementing the share offering to increase charter capital according to regulations.
Depending on each specific case, the Board of Directors is assigned to the General Director to
perform one or several specific tasks mentioned above.

Other authorization contents are specified in the detailed issuance plan.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval./.
Best Regards!

- Genera Meeting of Shareholders;
- Board of Directors,
- Save HR/IAC/BOD.




SHARE OFFERING/ISSUANCE PLAN
INCREASE CHARTER CAPITAL IN 2025

(Attached Report No.:05/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HPQT of the Board of Directors dated 28/03/2025)

I. PUBLIC OFFERING PLAN
1.1. | Number of shares offered: | Expected 15,245,704 shares
Ratio of the number of shares
expected to be offered
1.2. | additionally to the total | 50%
number of  outstanding
shares:
1.3. | Offering price: 10,000 (ten thousand) VND/share
1 4 'Tota‘] . expected  capital 152,457,040,000 VND
" | mobilized:
Existing sharcholders whose names are on the list of
_ ) shareholders on the last registration date to exercise the
L.5. | Offering objects: right to purchase shares provided by the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC).
. Offer for sale to existing shareholders by exercising
1.6. | Offering method: purchase rights.
2:1 (On the last registration date to close the sharcholder
list to exercise the right to purchase shares, shareholders
1.7. | Exercise ratio: owning 02 shares will have 02 purchase rights, every 02
purchase rights will be able to buy 01 additional issued
share).
. . _ After the offering plan is approved by the General Meeting
18 Estlmated Uip| SERHECON of Shareholders and the State Securities Commission issues
L a Certificate of registration for public offering of securities.
Existing sharcholders whose names are on the list on the
record date, to exercise the right to purchase additional
issued shares, have the right to transfer their right to
purchase shares to another person within the prescribed
1.9. | Transfer of purchase rights; | period and can only transfer once (the transferee cannot
transfer to a third party). The transferor and transferee shall
agree on the transfer price, pay the money and be
responsible for performing the obligations as prescribed in
relation to the transfer.
The number of shares offered to each existing shareholder
according to the exercise ratio will be rounded down to the
nearest unit. The entire number of odd shares arising from
Bion Forchodffgorld sliaves, rounclling down to the nearf.:st unit and the number of .share.:s
; that investors do not register to buy or pay for in this
1.10. Shiaregrit) THFEIans (oD offering (if any), the General Meeting of Shareholders

register to buy, do not pay to
buy, odd shares that arise

authorizes the Board of Directors to decide to distribute to
other subjects (including shareholders of the Company who
need to increase their share ownership) according to the
provisions of law with the conditions of offering,
conditions on rights and obligations of investors not more




favorable than the conditions of offering to existing
shareholders (including the offering price not lower than
VND 10,000/share).

For example: On the record date for shareholders to
exercise their rights, shareholder A owns 579 shares. At
that time, shareholder A will be able to buy an additional
number of shares corresponding to: (579:2)x1 = 289.5
shares, rounded down to 289 shares.

® The number of shares that existing shareholders and
transferees of purchase rights from existing sharcholders
exercise their purchase rights within the time specified
in the public offering notice to existing sharcholders
(including extension period - if any) is not subject to
transfer restrictions..

" The number of odd shares arising during the exercise of
rights is redistributed by the Board of Directors to other
subjects without transfer restrictions as prescribed in
Clause 4, Article 42 of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP

II.

DILUTION LEVEL ASSESSMENT

1. Difution of reference price on ex-dividend date:

SCI stock price will be technically adjusted on ex-dividend date to exercise the right to buy

additional shares offered. The market price of SCI stock will be adjusted according to the

following formula:

P 4+ (Prx )

prl =

LAl

In which:

PP Diluted share price on ex-dividend date

P': SCI stock price on the trading day before the ex-dividend date
Pr: 10,000 VND/share (Offering price for those with the right to buy shares)

1.11. | Restrictions on transfers: dated December 31, 2020.
* The number of shares that investors do not register to buy
or do not pay for, which are redistributed by the Board
of Directors to other entities, are restricted from transfer
for 01 year from the end date of the offering period as
prescribed in Clause 2, Article 42 of Decree
No.155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020.
" The number of shares purchased by the underwriting
organization according to the underwriting commitment
(if any) will not be subject to transfer restrictions.
Plan to ensure that the _ e |
5 . | The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board -/-‘E‘E—-«‘
offering of shares meets the | ~
) ) . of Directors to develop and approve a plan to ensure that
1.12. | regulations on maximum : ) SCI E¢
. o , the offering of shares meets the regulations on the
foreign ownership ratio at the : ol i Bl e i 3 INT S1
) maximum foreign ownership ratio at the Company.
Company: COMP/
Minimum successful . by, S
1 _ Not specified 4
L3, offering rate 4 J\f\-'_g_-—-_.}



- I:is the ratio of capital increase due to issuance of shares purchase rights
2. Diluted basic earnings per share:
After the offering, the number of shares outstanding in the market will increase, so earnings
per share (EPS) will be adjusted.

. : Profit after tax
Basic Earnings Per

= Average number of outstanding shares during the

Share (EPS)
period
In which:
Average number of outstanding X*T+HEFY)* T
shares during the pericd - | 12
X: Number of shares cutstanding before issuance
Y: Number of additional shares issued
T: Actual circulation time of shares before issuance
T": Actual circulation time of additional issued shares
3. Dilution in book value
Book value per share is calculated using the formula:
Book value of Equity
stock (BV) - Number of shares outstanding

After the offering 1s completed, BV may be affected if the offering price is lower than the
book value of the shares at the time of the offering.

4. Dilution in ownership and voting rights
The shareholder's ownership and voting rights will be reduced when the shareholder declines

the purchase right in this offering.
IIl. PLAN TO USE CAPITAL OBTAINED ROM THE OFFERING
1. Amount expected to be raised from the offering

" Eapectal

N umber of shares | Ofteung pnce '
ND/share) . Obtained (YND)

ne Plant e ORI e
o ottered g (V.

Public offering of additional
15,245,704 152,457,040,000

shares

2. Capital utilization plan
The capital obtained from the offering will be used in the following order of priority:

i Amp-u'nt (VN D) ) Cap.i”t_:_;l utilization pfogrcss _

Supplement working capital for
ongoing projects.

After the end of the offering
and according to the actual
progress of capital utilization

122,457,040,000




After the end of the offering
30,000,000,000 and according to the agreed
progress of the sales contract

Invest in construction equipment
and machinery.

Total 152,457,040,000

IV.

The detailed Capital utilization plan (including detailed investment plan and capital
allocation) is authorized by the General Meeting of Shareholders to the Company's Board
of Directors for decision.

In case other investment opportunities appear that are more feasible, the General Meeting
of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to proactively adjust/change the plan for
using capital raised from the offering and report to the General Meeting of Shareholders at
the nearest General Meeting after changing the purpose of capital utilization (if any).
Solution for cases where the offering does not collect the expected amount

Plan to compensate for the expected capital shortage from the offering: In case the shares
are not fully distributed as planned and the amount of capital mobilized is not as expected,
we respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders to authorize the Board of
Directors to consider mobilizing bank loans or finding other additional funding sources to
compensate in accordance with the Company's business operations.

APPROVAL OF ADJUSTING INFORMATION ON THE QUANTITY OF
SECURITIES REGISTERED AT VSDC, CHANGING LISTING REGISTRATION

General meeting of shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to proactively implement
and complete relevant procedures immediately after the end of the offering, including
adjusting quantity information at the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation and registering a change in listing for all shares offered according to the above
plan at the Stock Exchange where the Company's shares are listed.

IMPLEMENTATION ORGANIZATION

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to proactively carry
out procedures for offering shares to increase charter capital at an appropriate time
depending on the market situation and the Company's business activities, ensuring the
interests of shareholders, the success of the issuance and compliance with the provisions o

the Law and the Company's Charter./. g e
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d :"5-‘- Tel: 024 3386 8243 Email: enc@scigroup.vn | Website: www.scigroup.vn
No: 06/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HDQT Hanoi, March 28,2025
PROPOSAL

(Regarding Amendments and Supplements to the Charter of Organization and Operation
of the Company)

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to

—  Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on June 17,
2020, effective from January 1, 2021, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QH15 passed
on January 11, 2022, effective from March 1, 2022;

—  Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on November
26, 2019, amended by Law No. 56/2024/QH15 passed on November 29, 2024,
effective from January 1, 2025, and its guiding documents,

—  The Charter of Organization and Operation of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

The Board of Directors respectfully submits for the consideration and approval of the
General Meeting of Shareholders the amendments and supplements to the Charter of
Organization and Operation of the Company as follows:

Based on the provisions of the Enterprise Law, the Securities Law, and the practical
corporate governance activities of the Company, the Board of Directors recognizes the
necessity to review and amend certain provisions of the Charter. These amendments aim to
align with internationally accepted corporate governance practices permitted by law while
ensuring seamless corporate governance operations and maximizing shareholder benefits.

The detailed amendments and supplements are presented in the Appendix attached to
this Proposal. The revised and supplemented Charter provisions shall take effect from the
date of approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and

approval!
Best Regards./.

Attachmen% ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- Summary table and drafi amendments DIRECTORS

Company organization and operation
charter;

Amended Charter of Organization and
Operation of the Company.
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SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE DRAFT CHARTER OF SCI E&C
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

(Attached to Proposal.No. 05/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HPQT dated March 28, 2025)

Clause

Current content

Proposed amendments and supplements

Legal basis

Clause 6,
Article 5
.Charter
capital,
shares

The names, addresses, number of shares and
other details of founding shareholders as
prescribed by the Law on Enterprises at the
time of adoption of this Charter shall be stated
in Appendix 10 (this Appendix is an integral
part of this Charter).

Common shares must be offered to existing
shareholders in proportion to their ownership
of Common shares in the Company, unless
otherwise decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The number of shares that
shareholders do not register to buy in full will
be decided by the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Board of Directors may
distribute such shares to shareholders and
others on conditions no more favorable than
those offered to existing shareholders, unless
otherwise approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

Cancel

Common shares must be offered to existing
shareholders in proportion to their ownership
of Common shares in the Company, unless
otherwise decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The number of shares that
shareholders do not register to buy in full will
be decided by the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Board of Directors may
distribute such shares to shareholders and
others on conditions no more favorable than
those offered to existing shareholders, unless
otherwise approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

As prescribed in Clause
3Article 120 of the Law
on Enterprises 2020, the |
common shares of the
founding  shareholders
have expired the transfer
restriction period, so it is |
proposed to remove the
content about founding
shareholders in  the
Company Charter.

Clause 1,
Article 22.
Authority
and
procedures
for obtaining

The Board of Directors has the right to obtain
written opinions from shareholders to pass
resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders when deemed necessary for
the benefit of the Company.

The Board of Directors has the right to obtain
written opinions from shareholders to approve
all matters under the authority of the
General Meeting of Shareholders when
deemed necessary for the benefit of the

Company.

According to the
provisions of Clause 1, 2,
Article 147 of the Law on |
Enterprises 2020, propose
to amend the Company |
Charter to ensure the

CEEERY
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Summary of proposed amendments and supplements to the draft charter of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company.

written
opinions of
shareholders
to approve
decisions of
the General
Meeting of
Shareholders

approval of contents
under the authority of the
General Meeting  of

Shareholders by obtaining
shareholders' opinions in
writing.

Clause 2,
Article 25.
Candidacy,
nomination
of members
of the Board
of Directors

Shareholders holding common shares have
the right to aggregate their voting rights to
nominate candidates for the Board of
Directors. Shareholders or groups of
shareholders holding from 5% to less than
10% of total voting shares can nominate
one (01) candidate; from 10% to less than
30% can nominate a maximum of two (02)
candidates.; from 30% to less than 40% can
nominate up to three (03) candidates; from
40% to less than 50% can nominate up to four
(04) candidates; from 50% to less than 60%
can nominate up to five (05) candidates; from
60% to less than 70% can nominate up to six
(06) candidates; from 70% to 80% can
nominate up to seven (07) candidates; and
from 80% to less than 90% can nominate up
to eight (08) candidates.

Shareholders holding common shares have the
right to .aggregate their voting rights to
nominate candidates for the Board of
Directors.  Shareholders or groups of
shareholders holding From 10% to less than
20% of total voting shares can nominate one
(01) candidate; from 20% to less than 30%
can nominate a maximum of two (02)
candidates.; from 30% to less than 40% can
nominate up to three (03) candidates; from
40% to less than 50% can nominate up to four
(04) candidates; from 50% to less than 60% can
nominate up to five (05) candidates; from 60%
to less than 70% can nominate up to six (06)
candidates; from 70% to 80% can nominate up
to seven (07) candidates; and from 80% to less
than 90% can nominate up to eight (08)
candidates.

According to the
provisions of Clause 35,
Article 115 of the Law on
Enterprises 2020,
Shareholders or groups of
shareholders owning 10%
or more of the total
number of common shares
have the right to nominate
people to the Board of
Directors. Propose
amendments  to the
Charter to comply with
the provisions of the
Enterprise Law.

Clause 5,
Article 26.

The Board of Directors may appoint a new
member of the Board of Directors to fill the
vacancy arising, and such new member must
be approved at the next General Meeting of

Cancel

Proposed amendment to

the Charter to comply

LY
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Composition
and term of
office of
Board of
Directors

members

Shareholders. After being approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the
appointment of such new member shall be
deemed to be effective on the date of
appointment by the Board of Directors.

The term of the new member of the Board of
Directors shall be counted from the effective
date of appointment to the end of the term of
office of the Board of Directors. In case the
new member is not approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders, all decisions of the
Board of Directors up to the time of the
General Meeting of Shareholders with the
participation of the vote of the replacement
member of the Board of Directors shall still
be considered valid.

with Clauses 3 and 4,
Article 160 of the Law on |
Enterprises 2020

Clause 2,
point p,
Article 27.
Powers and
obligations
of the Board
of Directors

Report  Audited annual financial
statements, corporate governance reports
to the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Present the report of the Audited annual
financial statements to the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

Proposed amendment to

| the Charter to comply |

with Point n, Clause 2,
Article 153 of the Law on
Enterprises 2020
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CHARTER ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION No: SCIEC.SABS-QC.01

INTRODUCTION

This Charter serves as the legal basis governing all activities of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as the "Company"). This Charter was amended and approved by the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and takes effect from March 28, 2025
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CHARTER ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION No.: SCIEC. S‘ABS—QC‘, 01

CHAPTER I : DEFINITIONS OF TERMS IN THE CHARTER

ARTICLE 1. Definitions

I
a)

b)

g)

h)

k)

I)

m)

In this Charter, the following terms will be known as follows:

Charter capital refers to the total par value of shares sold or registered for purchase upon the
establishment of the joint-stock company, in accordance with Article 6 of this Charter;

Voting capital refers to the shares for which the shareholders have the right to vote on matters
within the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

Enterprise Law refers to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020 ;

Securities Law refers to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019; .

Vietnam refers to the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

Establishment date refers to the date the Company is issued the Business Registration
Certificate (the Business Registration Certificate and equivalent documents) for the first time;

The business operator is the Director (General Director), Deputy Director (Deputy General
Director), Chief Accountant, and other operators as stipulated in the company's Charter;

The business manager refers to the person managing the company, including the Chairman of
the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Directors, Director (General Director), and
other individuals holding management positions with the authority to sign transactions on
behalf of the company;

Related persons ar= individuals or organizations defined in Clause 46, Article 4 of the Securitics
Law;

Shareholders are individuals or organizations that own at least one share of a joint-stock
company;

Founding shareholders are sharcholders who own at least one common share and sign the list
of founding shareholders of the joint-stock company;

Large shareholders are shareholders defined in Clause 18, Article 4 of the Securities Law;

Duration of operation is the period of operation of the Company as stipulated in Article 2 of
this Charter and the extension period (if any) approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
of the Company;

Stock exchange refers to the Vietnam Stock Exchange and its subsidiaries.

In this Charter, references to any provision or other documents shall include any amendments
or replacements thereof. '

The headings (chapters, articles of this Charter) are used for convenience in understanding the
content and do not affect the content of this Charter.

Trang 5/ 49

e v 4

WEN



CHARTER ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION No: SCIEC.SABS-QC.01

CHAPTER II : NAME, FORM, HEADQUARTERS, BRANCHES,

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES, AND DURATION OF OPERATION OF THE

COMPANY

ARTICLE 2. Name, Form, Headquarters, Branches, Representative Offices, and Duration of

b)

d)

Operation of the Company
Company Name:
Vietnamese name:
Cong ty C6 phian SCI E&C
English name:
SCI E&C Joint Stock Company
Abbreviation:
SCI E&C
Company Logo:

The Company is a joint-stock company with legal status in accordance with the current laws of
Vietnam.

The registered headquarters of the Company is:

Address: 3rd Floor, Tower C, Golden Palace Building, Me Tri Street, Me Tri Ward, Nam Tu
Liem District, Hanoi City.

Phone: (84-24) 3 3868 243 Fax: (84-24) 3 3868 243
Website: www.scigroup.vn; Email: enc@scigroup.vn

The Company may establish branches and representative offices at business locations to carry
out the Company's activities in accordance with the decisions of the Board of Directors and
within the scope permitted by law.

Unless the Company's operation is terminated ahead of the time specified in Clause 2, Article
54 or extended according to the provisions of Article 55 of this Charter, the duration of the
Company's operation is indefinite from the date of establishment.

Legal form and legal status of the Company

The Company was established based on the conversion from the Song Da 9 Mechanical and
Fixation One Member LLC to the Song Da 9 Construction and Investment Joint Stock
Company, which was then renamed SCI E&C Joint Stock Company from April 28, 2017. The
Company operates under the Enterprise Law, relevant documents, and the Charter.

The company has legal status and a seal; it is allowed to open accounts in Vietnamese Dong
and foreign currencies at the State Treasury and domestic and foreign banks in accordance with
the law.

The company has its own capital and assets and is responsible for its debts with all its assets.

The company has the right to possess, use, and dispose of its capital, assets, name, symbol, and
brand in accordance with the law.
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CHARTER ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION No.: SCIEC.SABS-OC.01

c)

f)

g

The Company plays the central role in coordinating and linking the activitics of the entire
Company to achieve the highest production and business efficiency.

The company directly manages its capital shares in joint ventures and affiliates with domestic
and foreign partners in accordance with current laws.

The company is subject to state management by state agencies at all levels according to the law.

ARTICLE 3. Legal Representatives of the Company

I
2.

a)

b)

The Company is managed by the Board of Directors and operated by the General Director.

The legal representatives of the Company are individuals who represent the Company in
exercising its rights and obligations arising from the Company's transactions, representing the
Company as plaintiffs, defendants, parties with related rights and obligations before
Arbitration, Courts, and competent State agencies, and having other rights and obligations as
prescribed by law and this Charter.

The Company has two (02) legal representatives: the Chairman of the Board of Directors and
the General Director. Depending on the operational requirements at each period, the Company
may have additional legal representatives. The specific number of legal representatives will be
decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The rights and obligations of each legal representative are as follows:

The first legal representative is the Chairman of the Board of Directors: Decides to sign and
implement contracts, agreements, and documents within their authority or after approval by the
General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in Article 15 or by the Board of Directors as
stipulated in Article 27 of this Charter in the fields of finance and investment.

The second legal representative is the Director: Decides to sign and implement contracts,
agreements, and documents within their authority or after approval by the General Meeting of
Shareholders as stipulated in Article 15 or by the Board of Directors as stipulated in Article 27
of this Charter and represents the company before state agencies, organizations, and individuals
in all matters related to the company's activities in the fields of engineering and project
management.

Depending on the actual operations of the company, the General Meeting of Shareholders
decides or authorizes the Board of Directors to decide the detailed authority and tasks of each
legal representative according to Clause 4 of this Article.

Each legal representative of the company is personally responsible to the company, the General
Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, and the law for matters within their authority
as stipulated in Article 13 ofthe 2020 Law on Enterprises; this Charter; and the decisions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, according to Clause 5 of this Article.

All legal representatives are jointly liable for damages caused to the company in accordance
with civil law and other relevant laws, except when the Charter and relevant laws stipulate
otherwise regarding the separate responsibility of the legal representative for their violations
and damages to the company and other related individuals and organizations.

The company's Board of Directors must ensure that there is always at least one legal
representative residing in Vietnam. If one of the two legal representatives stipulated in Clause
3, Atticle 3, is absent or unable to perform their duties, the absent legal representative may
authorize the remaining legal representative or another company manager to exercise their
rights, obligations, and duties within the scope of the company's Board of Directors' task
assignment document mentioned in Clause 5 of this Article for the corresponding period of
absence or inability to perform duties. The authorization document must include the full name,
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number, date of issue, and place of issue of the ID card or passport of the authorizing legal
representative; the full name, number, date of issue, and place of issue of the ID card or passport
of the authorized person; the content of the authorization; the start and end time of the
authorization; the signature of the authorizing legal representative; and the signature of the
authorized person. In this case, the absent legal representative remains responsible to the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, and the law for matters within their
legally prescribed authority and this Charter.

If the authorization period stipulated in Clause 8 of this Article expires and the authorized legal
representative is still absent, the authorized person shall continue to perform the ri ghts and
obligations of the legal representative: (i) until the company's legal representative returns to
work at the company, or (ii) until the Board of Directors decides to appoint another person as
the legal representative of the enterprise. The Board of Directors' decision document in this case
has the highest legal value to determine the authority and responsibility of the legal
representatives.

If all legal representatives stipulated in Clause 3 of Article 3 are absent from Vietnam for more
than 30 (thirty) days without reporting to the Board of Directors to authorize another person to
perform the rights and obligations of the company's legal representative, or if they pass away,
g0 missing, are being prosecuted, are temporarily detained, are serving a prison sentence, are
serving administrative measures at a mandatory rehab center, mandatory education center, are
restricted or have lost their civil act capacity, have difficulty in cognition or behavior control,
or are prohibited by the court from holding positions, practicing certain professions, or doing
certain jobs, the Board of Directors shall appoint another person as the company's legal
representative.

CHAPTER I : OBJECTIVES, BUSINESS SCOPE, AND OPERATIONS OF THE

COMPANY

ARTICLE 4. Objectives of the Company

L.

To build and develop the Company into a strong enterprise with the capacity to execute turnkey
projects both domestically and internationally; using economic efficiency as the primary
measure for the Corapany's sustainable development; implementing diversification in industries
and products in construction; utilizing all resources to continuously improve competitiveness,
enhance the lives of workers, and make significant contributions to the Company's development
efforts.

To operate profitably, ensuring the safety and growth of investment capital in the Company and
other businesses; maximizing profits, developing production and business activities, providing
maximum benefits to shareholders, and contributing to the state budget through taxes on
production and business results.

ARTICLE 5. Scope of Business and Operations of the Company

1.

Scope of Business and Operations:

The Company is allowed to plan and carry out all business activities listed in its Business
Registration Certificate and this Charter in compliance with the provisions of current laws and
implement appropriate measures to achieve the Company's objectives.

The Company may engage in business activities in other fields that are not prohibited by law
and are approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Business sectors of the Company:
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No. Code Business Sectors

1 0710 Iron ore mining
(only operate after being permitted by competent state authorities )

2 0810 Quarrying of stone, sand, gravel, and clay

3 2392 Production of construction materials from clay

4 2395 Production of concrete and concrete products, cement, and gypsum

5 2592 Mechanical processing; metal treatment and coating |

6 2599 Manufacture of other metal products not elsewhere classified
Details: Production of other metal products.
(For conditional business activities, the Company can only operate in
production and business when it meets the requirements as prescribed by
law)

7 3312 Repair of machine_ry and equipment

8 3320 Installation of machinery and industrial equipment

9 3511 Electricity production
(Except for the construction and operation of multi-purpose hydropower
and nuclear power, which are of particular importance to the economy and
society)

10 3512 Electricity transmission and distribution
Details: Electricity transmission and distribution; electricity trading
(except for national electricity system transmission and operation control)

11 4101 Construction of residential buildings

12 4102 Construction of non-residential buildings

13 4211 Construction of roadworks

14 4212 Construction of railway works

15 4221 Construction of electrical works

(main) Details:

- Construction of power lines; substations up to 220KV
- Construction of power plants.

16 4222 Construction of water supply and drainage works

17 4223 Construction of telecommunications and information communication
works

18 4229 Construction of other public utility works

19 4291 Construction of hydropower works
Details: Construction of hydropower works such as::
+ Waterways, ports, and riverworks, tourist ports (docks), sluice gates, etc
+ Dams and embankments. N

Trang 9/49

N2\

L Ye B



CHARTER ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION No: SCIEC.SABS-QC.01

20

4292

Construction of mining works
Details:

- Construction of industrial mining works, excluding buildings such as:
+ Oil refineries.

+ Coal, ore mining works, etc.

21

4293

Construction of Processing and Manufacturing Works
Details:

- Construction of industrial processing and manufacturing works,
excluding buildings such as;

+ Chemical plants producing basic chemicals, pharmaceutical chemicals,
medicinal materials, and other chemicals.

+ Construction material production plants.

+ Food processing plants, etc.

22

4299

Construction of Other Civil Engineering Works

Details: Construction of other non-building works such as: outdoor sports
Jacilities.

23

4311

Demolition

24

4312

Site Preparation
Details: Site preparation includes:
- Cleaning of construction sites,

- Transporting soil: excavation, filling, leveling, and grading at
construction sites, drainage, transporting stones, blasting, etc.

- Site preparation for mining activities, such as moving bulky materials and
other preparatory and development activities related to mining sites and
mineral assets, excluding oil and gas regions;

- Exploration drilling, test hole drilling, sample collection for geological,
geophysical checks, or similar purposes;

- Water supply and drainage systems at construction sites:

- Agricultural and forestry water supply and drainage systems.

25

4321

Installation of Electrical Systems

26

4322

Installation of Water Supply, Drainage, Heating, and Air Conditioning
Systems

27

4329

—

Installation of Other Construction Systems

28

4330

Completion of Construction Works

29

4390

Other Specialized Construction Activities
Details:

- Construction of building foundations, including piling, moisture testing,

water lesting, building moisture protection, setting up pillars, removing
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non-self-produced steel components, bending steel, bf.'fck]czyfng, and
placing stone, roofing the building;

- Erecting scaffolding and activities to create building sites by disman tling
or demolishing construction works, excluding scaffolding rental and site
rental; demolition of chimneys and industrial boilers, tasks requiring
specialized skills such as climbing and using related equipment (e.g.,
working on high floors of tall buildings;

- Subsurface work,
- Construction of outdoor swimming pools;

- Steam cleaning, sandblasting, and similar activities Jor building
exteriors;

- Crane rental with an operator,

4511

Wholesale of Automobiles and Other Motor Vehicles

31

4512

Retail of Passenger Cars (9 seats or fewer)

32

4520

Maintenance and Repair of Automobiles and Other Motor Vehicles

35

4541

Wholesale of Motorcycles and Bicycles

34

4542

Maintenance and Repair of Motorcycles and Bicycles

35

4659

Wholesale of Machinery, Equipment, and Other Machine Parts
Details:

- Wholesale of machinery, equipment, and parts Jor mining and
construction;

- Wholesale of electrical machinery, electrical materials (generators,
electric motors, wires, and other electrical devices such as ransformers,
relays, circuit breakers, fuses, elc.);

- Wholesale of office machinery, equipment, and parts (excluding
computers and peripheral devices),

- Wholesale of industrial machinery, equipment, and parts.

36

4661

Wholesale of Solid, Liquid, Gaseous Fuels and Related Products

37

4663

Whclesale of Materials and Installation Equipment for Construction

38

4933

Road Freight Transportation

39

7710

Motor Vehicle Rental

Details: Car rental.

40

7730

Rental of Machinery, Equipment, and Other Tangible Goods Without an
Operator

Details: Rental of agricultural and forestry machinery and equipment
without an operator

41

8299

Other Business Support Services Not Classified Elsewhere

Details: Import and export of business items (except for items prohibited

by the State)

Trang 11/49

el

~

2 5

Ul



CHARTER ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION No: ,S‘C:’ii‘C,SABS{)_C‘, 01

3.

Financial Investment in Subsidiaries and Associated Companies:

The Company may engage in business activities in other areas that are not prohibited by law
and are approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

CHAPTER IV : CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES, FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS
ARTICLE 6. Charter Capital, Shares

k.

The current charter capital of the Company is VND 304,914,090,000 (Three hundred four
billion, nine hundred fourteen million, ninety thousand VND./.)

The total charter capital of the Company is divided into 30,491,409 (Thirty million, four
hundred ninety-one thousand, four hundred and nine) shares, with a par value of VND 10,000
(ten thousand VND) per share.

The Company may adjust its charter capital by increasing or decreasing it when appreved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders and in accordance with this Charter and applicable laws.

The shares of the Company on the date of approval of this Charter include common shares and
preferred shares (if any).

The Company may issue other types of preferred shares after obtaining approval from the
Gereral Meeting of Shareholders and in accordance with the relevant legal regulations.

The names, addresses, number of shares, and other details of the founding shareholders as
stipulated by the Enterprise Law at the time of approval of this Charter will be listed in
Appendix 10 (This appendix is an inseparable part of this Charter).

Common shares must be given priority in being offered to existing shareholders in proportion
to their holdings of common shares in the Company, except in cases where the General Meeting
of Shareholders decides otherwise. Any shares that are not subscribed to by the existing
shareholders will be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors
may allocate those shares fo other shareholders or third parties, provided that the terms are no
more favorable than those offered to existing shareholders, unless otherwise approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

‘The company may reﬁurchase Sharcs'i.ssued by the company (including redeemable preferred

shares) in the manner prescribed in this Charter and current law. Common shares repurchased

- by the company are treasury shares, and the Board of Directors may offer them for sale in

accordance with the provisions of this Charter, the Securities Law, and relevant guiding
documents. '

The Company may issue other types of securities when approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders in writing and in accorcance with legal regulations.

The charter capital will be used for the following business activities:

Purchasing fixed assets, machinery, and equipment to expand the Company's operations;
Developing technical expertise;

Purchasing shares, borids, or contributing to joint ventures:

Necessary reserves for movable and immovable assets;

Business activities in accordance with the registered business sectors in the Business License;

The company does not use charter capital to distribute to shareholders in any form (unless
otherwise decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the provisions

Trang 12 /49

1“8

N w o

_

]



CHARTER ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION  No: SCIEC. SABS-QC.01

of law).

ARTICLE 7. Share Certificates

L

Shareholders of the Company shall be issued share certificates corresponding to the number of
shares and the type of shares they own.

The share certificate must bear the Company’s seal and the signature of the legal representative
of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law. The share certificate
must clearly state the number and type of shares held by the shareholder, the name of the
shareholder, and other information as required by the Enterprise Law.

Within forty-five (45) days from the date the full documentation for the transfer of ownership
of the shares has been submitted (or a longer period as stipulated in the issuance terms), and
from the date of full payment for the shares as per the Company’s share issuance plan, the
shareholder will be issued a share certificate. The shareholder does not need to pay the
Company any printing costs for the share certificate.

In case the share certificate is damaged, altered, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the shareholder may
request the issuance of a new share certificate, provided they offer proof of share ownership
and pay any related costs to the Company, and must give an undertaking with the following
contents:

The share certificate has indeed been lost, burned, or destroyed in some other manner; if lost,

the shareholder must also assure that they have made every effort to find it and, if found, will

return it to the Company for cancellation;

The shareholder assumes responsibility for any disputes arising from the issuance of the new
share certificate;

For shares with a nominal value exceeding ten (10) million Vietnamese Dong, before accepting

the request to reissue the share certificate, the legal representative of the Company may require
the shareholder to publish an announcement about the lost, burned, or destroyed share
certificate. After fifteen (15) days from the publication of the announcem ent, the Company will
proceed to issue a new share certificate.

ARTICLE 8. Other Securities Certificates

Bond certificates or other securities certificates of the Company are issued with the Signature
of the legal representative and the seal of the Company.

ARTICLE 9. Share Transfer

L.

Offering

The Board of Directors decides the timing, method, and price for offering shares within the
authorized shares for sale. The offering price of shares shall not be lower than the market price
at the time of offering or the book value of shares at the nearest time, except in the following
cases:

Shares offered for the first time to persons who are not founding shareholders;
Shares offered to all shareholders in proportion to their current shareholding in the Company;

Shares offered to brokers or underwriters. In this case, the specific discount or discount rate
must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

After the shares are sold, the Company issues share certificates to the purchasers. The
information about shareholders is fully recorded in the share certificates and the Company's
shareholder register, which serves as the basis for certifying the ownership of shares by those
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2

a)

b)

shareholders in the Company.
Transfer

All shares can be freely transferred unless otherwise stated in the Articles of Association or by
law. Shares listed on the Stock Exchange will be transferred according to the regulations of the
securities law and stock market rules of the Stock Exchange. The transferor retains the rights
and obligations of a sharcholder in the Company until the transferee is registered as a
shareholder in the Company’s shareholder register. The conditions, methods, and procedures
for public offering of shares will also follow the regulations of the securities law and stock
market rules.

Shares that have not been fully paid for cannot be transferred or entitled to associated rights
such as the right to receive dividends, the right to receive shares issued to increase share ca pital
from the owner’s equity, the right to purchase newly issued shares, and other rights as stipulated
by law.

Inheritance

In case a sharcholder is an individual who passes away, the heir according to the will or by law
of that sharcholder becomes a shareholder of the company.

In case the shares of a deceased individual shareholder have no heir, the heir refuses to accept
the inheritance, or the heir is disinherited, those shares will be handled according to civil law
provisions.

ARTICLE 10. Share Recovery, Repurchase, and Payment Conditions for Repurchased Shares

l.
a)

b)

d)

)

Share Recovery.

In cases where a shareholder does not fully pay for the shares on time, the Board of Directors
shall notify the shareholder and has the right to require the shareholder to pay the outstanding
amount along with interest on that amount and any costs arising from the failure to pay in full
as per the regulations.

The payment notice must specify the new payment deadline (at least seven (07) days from the
date the notice is sent), the payment location, and must specify that if the payment is not made
as required, the unpaid shares will be recalled.

[f the requirements in the notice are not fulfilled, the Board of Directors has the right to recall
the shares before full payment of all amounts due, interest, and related costs. The Board of
Directors may accept the surrender of the recalled shares as specified in points d, e, f, and other
cases stipulated in this Charter.

The recalled shares are considered available for sale. The Board of Directors can either directly
or authorize the sale or redistribution of the shares under terms and conditions deemed
appropriate by the Board.

Shareholders holding recovered shares shall lose their shareholder status for those shares but
must still pay all related amounts plus interest at a rate (not exceeding 15% per year) at the time
of recovery as decided by the Board of Directors from the recovery date until payment is made.
The Board of Directors has full authority to enforce the payment of the full value of the shares
at the time of recovery.

Recovery notifications will be sent to holders of recovered shares before the recovery date. The
recovery remains valid even in case of errors or negligence in sending the notification.

Share Repurchase.

Repurchase of Shares upon Shareholder’s Request.
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Shareholders who vote against the decision regarding the restructuring of the Company or
changes to the rights and obligations of shareholders have the right to request the Company to
repurchase their shares. The request must be in writing, specifying the shareholder’s name,
address, the number of shares of each type, the proposed sale price, and the reason for requesting
the repurchase. The request must be submitted to the Company within ten (10) working days
from the date the General Meeting of Shareholders approves the decisions related to the matters
mentioned in this section.

The Company must repurchase the shares at the shareholder’s request as stated in this section
at the market price or a price determined according to the principles within ninety (90) days
from the date the request is received. If no agreement on the price is reached, the shareholder
may sell the shares to another party, or the parties can request a professional valuation
organization to determine the price. The Company will introduce at lcast three professional
valuation organizations for the shareholder to choose from, and the choice will be final.

Repurchase of shares as decided by the Company.

The Company has the right to repurchase no more than 30% of the total number of common
shares that have been sold, and a part or the entire number of preferred dividend shares that
have been sold, under the following regulations:

The Board of Directors has the right to decide to repurchase no more than 10% of the total
number of each type of shares sold within each twelve (12) months. In other cases, the
repurchase of shares must be decided by the General Meeting of Sharcholders;

The Board of Directors decides on the repurchase price of shares. For common shares, the
repurchase price cannot exceed the market price at the time of repurchase. For other types of
shares and shares held by related sharcholders without other agreements, the repurchase price
cannot be lower than the market price;

The Company may repurchase shares from each shareholder corresponding to their
sharcholding in the Company. In this case, the decision to repurchase shares must be
communicated in a manner ensuring that all shareholders receive it within thirty (30) days from
the date the decision is passed. The notice must include the name, address of the Company’s
headquarters, the total number of shares and the types of shares to be repurchased, the
repurchase price or the principles for determining the repurchase price, the procedures and
payment deadlines, and the procedures and deadlines for sharcholders to offer their shares for
repurchase;

Shareholders agreeing to sell their shares must submit their offer to sell to the Company in a
manner ensuring it is received within thirty (30) days from the date of the notice. The offer must
include the shareholder’s name, permanent address, ID card number, passport or other valid
personal identification of the individual sharcholder; name, address of the organization’s
headquarters, establishment decision number, or business registration number of the corporate
shareholder; the number of shares owned and the number of shares offered for sale; the payment
method; and the signature of the shareholder or their legal representative. The Company will
only repurchase shares offered within the specified period.

Conditions for Payment and Handling of Repurchased Shares.

The Company is only allowed to pay for repurchased shares to shareholders as stipulated in
Clause 2 of this Article if, immediately after fully paying for the repurchased shares, the
Company can still ensure the full payment of debts and other financial obligations.

Shares repurchased as stipulated in Clause 2 of this Article are considered repurchased shares
and part of the authorized shares available for sale. The Company must register to reduce the
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b)

Charter Capital equivalent to the (otal par value of the shares repurchased by the Company
within ten (10) days from the date of completing the payment for repurchased shares, unless
otherwise stipulated by the securities law.

Share certificates confirming the ownership of repurchased shares must be destroyed
immediately after the corresponding shares are fully paid. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors and the Director must be jointly responsible for any damage caused to the Company
by not destroying or delaying the destruction of the share certificates.

After fully paying for the repurchased shares, if the total asset value recorded in the Company's
accounting books decreases by more than 10%, the Company must notify all creditors within
fifteen (15) days from the date of fully paying for the repurchased shares.

CHAPTER V : ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT
ARTICLE 11. Management and Governance Structure

a)
b)

c)

The management and governance structure of the Company consists of:
The General Meeting of Shareholders;
The Board of Directors;

The Director.

CHAPTER VI : SHAREHOLDERS AND THE GENERAL MEETING OF

SHAREHOLDERS

ARTICLE 12. Rights of Shareholders

I

b)

c)

d)

g)

h)

Shareholders are the owners of the Company and have rights and obligations corresponding to
the number and type of shares they own. Shareholders are only liable for the Company's debts
and other obligations to the extent of the capital they have contributed to the Company.

Common shareholders have the following rights:

Attend and speak at General Meeting of Shareholders and exercise voting rights directly at the
General Meeting of Shareholders or through authorized representatives; or vote remotely; or
send votes via email stated in the meeting invitation notice;

Receive dividends at the rate determined by the General Meeting of Sharcholders;
Freely transfer fully paid shares according to the provisions of this Charter and current law;

Be given priority to purchase new shares offered in proportion to the percentage of common
shares they own;

Inspect information related to shareholders on the list of eligible shareholders participating in
the General Meeting of Shareholders and request amendments to incorrect information;

Review, examine, extract, or copy the Company's Charter, minutes of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, and resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

[n the event of the Company’s liquidation or bankruptcy, to receive a portion of the remaining
assets corresponding to their shareholding in the Company after the Company has settled debts
with creditors (including liabilities to the State, taxes, and fees) and other types of shareholders
as stipulated by law;

To request the Company to repurchase shares in the cases specified in Article 132 of the Law
on Enterprises;

Other rights as stipulated by the Company’s Charter and laws.
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b)

d)

Shareholders or a group of shareholders holding at least 5% of the total number of common
shares have the following rights:

Request the Board of Directors to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated
in Clause 3, Article 115, and Article 140 of the Law on Enterprises;

Review, investigate, extract minutes and resolutions, decisions of the Board of Directors, semi-
annual and annual financial reports, reports from the Audit Committee under the Board of
Directors, contracts, transactions requiring approval by the Board of Directors, and other
documents, except for documents related to the Company's trade secrets and business
confidential information;

Request the Audit Committee under the Board of Directors to examine specific issues related
to the management and operation of the Company when deemed necessary. The request must
be in writing and include the following details: full name, contact address, nationality, personal
identification documents for individual shareholders; name, business registration code or legal
identification documents, and head office address for organizational shareholders; the number
of shares and the time of share registration of each sharcholder, the total number of shares of
the group of shareholders, and the percentage of ownership in the total shares of the Company;
the issues to be examined, the purpose of the examination;

Other rights as stipulated by law and this Charter.

ARTICLE 13. Obligations of Shareholders

Common shareholders have the following obligations:
Fully and timely pay for the shares they have committed to purchasing,

Not to withdraw the contributed capital in the form of common shares from the Company under
any circumstances, except in cases where the Company or others repurchase the shares. In case
any shareholder withdraws part or all of the contributed share capital in violation of this
provision, the shareholder and any related parties within the Company must be jointly
responsible for the Company's debts and other obligations to the extent of the withdrawn share
value and any resulting losses.

Comply with the Company's Charter and internal management regulations.

Comply with the resolutions and decisions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and the
Board of Directors.

Maintain the confidentiality of information provided by the Company according to the
Company's Charter and the law; only use the information provided to exercise and protect their
lawful rights and interests; strictly prohibit the dissemination, copying, or transmission of
information provided by the Company to other organizations or individuals.

Attend the General Meeting of Shareholders and exercise voting rights through the foliowing
forms:

Attend and vote directly at the meeting;

Authorize other individuals or organizations to attend and vote at the meeting;

Attend and vote through online meetings, electronic voting, or other electronic forms;
Send the voting ballot to the meeting by mail, fax, or email;

Send the voting ballot by [other means] as regulated in the Company’s Charter.

Assume personal responsibility when representing the Company in any form to perform any of
the following acts:
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a)
b)

¢)
8.

Violating the law;

Conducting business and other transactions for personal gain or serving the interests of other
organizations or individuals;

Pay debts not yet due in the face of financial risks to the Company.

To complete any other obligations as prescribed by current law.

ARTICLE 14, General meeting of shareholders

I.

b)

The General Meeting of Shareholders includes all shareholders with voting rights and is the
highest decision-making body of the Company. The General Meeting of Shareholders meets
annually once a year and within four (04) months from the end of the fiscal year. Unless
otherwise specified in the Company’s Charter, the Board of Directors may extend the annual
General Meeting of Shareholders when necessary, but not exceeding six (06) months from the
end of the fiscal year. In addition to the annual meeting, the General Meeting of Sharecholders
may meet extraordinary. The meeting location of the General Meeting of Shareholders is
determined by the chairman and must be located within the territory of Vietnam.

The Board of Directors convenes the annual General Meeting of Shareholders and selects a
suitable venue. The annual General Meeting of Shareholders decides on issues as prescribed by
law and the Company’s Charter, particularly approving the audited annual financial report. In
case the audit report of the Company’s annual financial statement includes material exceptions,
opposing audit opinions, or a refusal to issue an opinion, the Company must invite a
representative from an accredited auditing firm to attend the annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. The accredited auditing firm representative is responsible for attending the
meeting.

The Board of Directors must convene an extraordinary General Meeting of Sharcholders in the
following cases:

The Board of Directors deems it necessary for the benefit of the Company;

The number of members of the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee under the Board of
Directors is less than the minimum required by law;

At the request of shareholders or a group of shareholders specified in Clause 2, Article 115 of
the Law on Enterprises; the request to convene the meeting must be made in writing, specifying
the reasons and purposes of the meeting, and signed by the relevant shareholders or in multi ple
copies with signatures of all involved shareholders;

At the request of the Audit Committee under the Board of Directors:
Other cases as prescribed by law and the Company’s Charter.
Convening an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Board of Directors must convene the extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders within
30 days from the date the number of Board members, independent Board members, or Audit
Committee members under the Board of Directors is reduced as per item b, Clause 3 of this
Article or upon receiving a request as per items ¢ and d of Clause 3 of this Article;

If the Board of Directors fails to convene the meeting within the period specified in item a,
Clause 4 of this Article, the Audit Committee under the Board of Directors shall convene the
meeting as stipulated in Clause 3, Article 140 of the Law on Enterprises;

[fthe Audit Committee under the Board of Directors fails to convene the extraordinary meeting
as per item b, Clause 4 of this Article, the shareholders or group of shareholders specified in
item ¢, Clause 3 of this Article have the right to request the Company’s representative to
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d)

convene the meeting as per the Law on Enterprises;

[In this case, the shareholders or group of shareholders convening the meeting may request the
Business Registration Agency to oversee the procedure, the process of convening, holding the
meeting, and making decisions at the General Meeting of Shareholders. All costs for convening
and holding the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be reimbursed by the Company. These
costs do not include the expenses incurred by shareholders when attending the meeting,
including accommodation and travel costs.]

Procedures for organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders are as specified in Clause 5,
Article 140 of the Law on Enterprises.

ARTICLE 15. Rights and duties of the general meeting of shareholders

1

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
2

a)
b)

c)
d)

g)
h)

k)
k)

D

The annual General Meeting of Shareholders has the right to discuss and approve the following
issues:

The audited annual financial report

The report of the Board of Directors;

The short-term and long-term development plans of the Company;
The annual business plan of the Company;

The dividend rate for each type of share;

Other matters within its authority.

The annual and extraordinary General Meetings of Shareholders make written decisions on the
following matters:

Approval of the annual financial reports;

The annual dividend rate for each type of share in accordance with the Law on Enterprises and
the rights attached to that type of'share. This dividend rate shall not exceed the amount proposed
by the Board of Directors after consulting the shareholders at the General Meeting of
Shareholders;

The number of members of the Board of Directors;
Selection of the auditing firm;
To elect, dismiss, remove and replace members of the Board of Directors;

Total remuneration of members of the Board of Directors in the fiscal year and Estimation of
remuneration of the Board of Directors in the planned year;

To supplement and amend the Charter of the Company;

The classes of shares and the number of new shares to be issued for each class, and the transfer
of shares of the founders within the first three years from the Date of Establishment;

To split, separate, consolidate, acquisite or transform the form of the Company;
To reorganize and dissolve (liquidate) the Company and appoint the liquidator;

To inspect and handle violations of the Board of Directors or the Internal Auditing Board
causing damage to the Company and its shareholders; :

To make decisions on investing/selling assets valued at least or above 35% of total value of
assets of the Company recorded in the most recent audited financial statements;

The Company acquisites more than 10% of the total number of shares of each class already
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n)

issued;

Any contract, transaction is signed by the Company with objects stipulated at Clause 1 Article
167 Laws of Enterprise valued at least or above 35% 35% total value of assets of the Company
recorded in the most recent financial statements;

Other matters in accordance with the Laws and such Charter;
Shareholders shall not be allowed to vote in the following

The contracts stipulated at point n clause 2 this Article when such sharcholder or a person
related to such sharcholder is a party to the contract;

The share repurchase of such shareholder or of a person related to such shareholder except for
the case where the share repurchase is carried out according to the ownership ratio of all
sharcholders or the repurchase is made through order matching on the Stock Exchange or public
offer in accordance with law.

All resolutions and issues included in the agenda shall be discussed and voted on at the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

ARTICLE 16. Authorized representative

[

a)
b)

Sharcholders who have the rights to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance
with law may directly attend or authorize individuals and organizations to attend. In case more
than one authorized representative is appointed, the number of shares and the number of votes
of each representative shall be specified.

The authorization of individuals and representative organizations to attend the General Meeti ng
of Sharcholders as prescribed in Clause 1 of this Article shall be made in writing, The
authorization document shall be made in accordance with the provisions of civil law and shall
clearly stated the name of the authorized shareholder, the name of the authorized individual or
organization, the number of authorized shares, the contents of the authorization, the scope of
authorization, the duration of the authorization, and the signatures of the authorizing parties and
the authorized parties.

The individuals authorized to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders shall submit a written
authorization document when registering to attend the meeting. In case of re-authorization, the
meeting attendee shall additionally present the original authorization document of the
shareholder, the authorized representative of the shareholder being an organization (if not
previously registered with the Company).

The voting card of the authorized individual to attend the meeting within the scope of
authorization shall stay valid when one of the following cases occurs, except:

The authorizer has died, has limited to or lost capacity for civil act;
The authorizer has canceled the appointment of the authorization;
The authorizer has canceled the authority of the individual performing the authorization.

Such clause shall be inapplicable to the case that the Company receives notice of one of the
mentioned events before the opening time of the General Meeting of Shareholders or before the
meeting is reconvened.

ARTICLE 17. Change of rights

1.

The change or cancellation of special rights associated with a class of preference shares takes
effect when approved by shareholders representing 65% or more of the total votes of all
shareholders attending the meeting. The Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders on
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the contents that adversely change the rights and obligations of shareholders owning preference
shares may only be approved if approved by the number of preference shareholders of the same
class attending the meeting owning 75% or more of the total preference shares of such class or
75% or more of the total shares owned by preference shareholders of the same class the shall
be approved in case of approval of the resolution in the form of written consultation.

The organization of a meeting of shareholders holding a class of preference shares to approve
the change of the above-mentioned rights is only valid when there are at least 02 shareholders
(or their authorized representatives) and hold at least 1/3 of the value of such issued shares. In
case there are not enough delegates as mentioned above, the meeting shall be reconvened within
the 30 days thereafters and the holders of shares of such class (regardless of the number of
induviduals and number of shares) who are presented in person or through authorized
representatives shall be considered as having the required number of delegates. At the meetings
of shareholders holding the mentioned preferential shares, holders of shares of such class who
are presented in person or through their representatives may request a secret ballot. Each share
of the same class has equal voting rights at the mentioned meetings.

The procedure for conducting such separate meetings shall be carried out accordingly to the
provisions of Articles 19, 20 and 21 of this Charter.

Unless the terms of the share offering provided otherwise, the special rights attached to the
classes of shares have preferential rights in respect of some or all of the matters relating to the
distribution of the profits or assets of the Company remained unchanged when the Company
issues additional shares of the same class.

ARTICLE 18. Meeting convening, meeting agenda and announcement of the General Meeting

of Sharcholders

The Board of Directors shall convene the Annual and Extraordinary General Meeting of
Sharcholders. The Board of Directors shall convene an Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders in the cases stipulated in Clause 3, Article 14 of this Charter.

The convenor of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall perform the followin g tasks:

Prepare an eligible sharcholder list to participate and vote at the General Meeting of
Sharcholders. The shareholder list entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders shall
be made no later than [10] days before the date of sending the invitation notice of the General
Meeting of Shareholders. The Company shall publish information on the compilation of the list
of shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders at least 20 days before
the last registration date;

To prepare the agend and contents of the Meeting;
To prepare documents for the Meeting;

To draft a resolution of the General Meeting of Sharecholders in accordance with the proposed
contents of the Meeting;

To determine the time and venue of the Meeting;

To send a notice of invitation the General Meeting of Shareholders to all shareholders entitled
to attend the meeting;

Gther activities to serve the Meeting.

The notice of invitation to the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be sent to all shareholders
by the method of ensuring that the contact address of shareholders is reached, and at the same
time published on the website of the Company and the State Securities Commission and the
Stock Exchange where the shares of the Company are listed or registered for trading. The
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a)

b)

convenor of the General Meeting of Shareholders shallsend a notice of invitation to the meeting
to all shareholders on the List of shareholders entitled to attend the meeting at least 21 days
prior to the opening date of the meeting (counting from the date on which the notice is duly sent
or delivered). The agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders, documents related to issues
to be voted on at the General Meeting shall be sent to shareholders or/and posted on the website
of the Company. In case the documents are not enclosed with the notice of the meeting of the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the notice of invitation to the meeting shall be clearly stated
the link to all meeting documents for shareholders to access, including;

Meeting agenda, documents used in the meeting;

List and detailed information of candidates in case of election of members of the Board of
Directors, members of the Audit Committee under the Board of Directors;

YVetiug caids;

Drait resolutions for each issue in the meeting agenda.

Sharehcléers or groups of shareholders mentinned in Clause 3, Article 12 of this Charter have
the rights to propose the issues included in the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The proposal shall be made in writing and sent ‘o the Company at least three (03) working days
prior to the opening date of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The proposal shall include
the full name of the sharcholder, permanent residence address, number of the citizen identity
card, passpert or other legal authentication for individual shareholders; Name, enterprise code
cr establishment decision, head office address for sharcholders as organizations; the number
and class of shares held by the individual, and the content of the proposal included in the
meeting agenda. '

he convenor of the General Meeting of Sharehelders has the rights to reject proposals related
to Clause 4 of this Article in the following cases:

~he pefition is sent in contravention of the provisions of Clause 4 of this Article;

At the tinse of petition, the shareholder or group of shareholders does not hold [5%] or more of
ordinary chares as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 12 of this Charter;

The iscue of recommendations does not fail within the decision-making competence of the
General -zigeting of Sharenholders; '

Other »52; as prescribed by law and this Charier.

The ecavenor of the General Meeting of Sharcholders shall accept and include the proposals

specifi=* in Clause 4 of this Article in the tes.*ative agenda and contents of the me sting, except
for the czse specified in Clause 5 of this Ariicle; the proposal shall be officiaily added to the
agend: ~nd coutent of the meeting if approve? by the General Meeting of Sharehoiders.

ARTYILE 0 Conditions for conducting the Ge .eral Meeting of Sharehols ers
2 g

1,

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted when the number of attending

shareholders represents at least 50% of the total voting shares.

[n case where the first meeting fails to meet the conditions prescribed in Clause 1 of this Article,
the notice of invitation of the second meeting shall be sent within 30 days following the date of
the first meeting. The second General Meeting of Shareholders shall be convened when the
number of shareholders attending the meeting represents at least 33% of the total number of the
voting shares.

[f the second meeting fails to meet the conditions stipulated in Clause 2 of this Article, the
notice of invitation to the third meeting shall be sent within 20 days following the date of the
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second meeting. The Third General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted regardless of
the total number of voting shares of sharcholders attending the meeting.
At the request of the Chairman, the General Meefing of Shareholders has the rights to change

the meeting agenda enclosed with the notice of invitation to the meeting as preseribed in Clause
3, Article 18 of this Charter.

ARTICLE 20. Procedure for conducting the meeting and voting at the General Meeting of

Shareholders

Before the opening of the General Meeting of Sharcholders, the Company shall carry out the
procedures for registering sharcholders and the registration shall be made until all shareholders
who have the rights to attend the meeting are presented to register.

When conducting sharcholder registration, the Company shall issue cach shareholder or
authorized representative having the rights to vote on a ballot card, on which the registration
number, full name of the shareholder, the full name of the authorized representative and the
number of votes of such shareholder. When voting at the meeting, the number of votes in fi AVOL |
of the resolution is collected first, the number of votes against the resolution is collected later,
and finally the total number of votes in favor or opposition is counted for decision. The ‘rotﬂl
number of votes in favor, opposition, abstention or invalid voting on each issue shall be notz_ﬁed
by the Chairperson inuncdiately after voting on such issue. The meeting shall elect persons
responsible for counting votes or supervising the counting at the request of the presiding judge.
The number of members of the vote counting board shall be decided by the General Meeting of _
Sharceholders at the request of the Chairperson.

Shareholders and authorized representatives of shareholders attending the General Meeting of
Sharcholders after the opening of the meeting are still entitled to register immediately and then
have the right to participate and vote at the general meeting. The Chairperson may stop the
meeting for the late arrivals for registration; in t‘n1'~; case the validity of the prcwousiy voted
contents will noted be influenced.

The General Meeting of Sharcholders shall be the Chairperson of the meetings convened by the
Board of Directors. If the Chairman is absent or temporarily incapable of working, ‘the -
remaining members shall elect one of them to be the Chairperson of the meeting in the princinle
of majority vote. Ir.case of not electing the chairperson, the independent member of the Boa: rh
of Directors shall @irect the General Meeting of Sharzaolders to elect the chairperson of 2
meeting and the person with the highest vote will be the Chairperson of the meeting, il

In other cases, the person who signs to convene the General Meeting of Sharcholders diidors
the General Meesmg of Shareholders to elect the chc:i:"'pel son of the Meeting and the per'
with the highest vzte will be the cha1rper<;0n of the meeting.

The agenda and abntent of the meeting must be anmoved by the General Mf*etmg

* Shareholc ors in thainzening session. The agenda must cléarly specify the time for eath issub

the agenca.

The Chairperson shall be entitled to adjourn the General Meeting of Shareholders which it has
enough attendants registering to attend the meeting any time or to change the meetin g venue in
the following cases:

The :neeting venue does not have enough: zeats for all participants;

The means of communication at the meeting place do not guarantee the attending shareholders
to participate and discuss and vote;

Some participants in the meeting have behaved in a manner that is obstructine or disturbine the
P p g g g
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10.

11

12.

13.

order and threatening to cause the meeting to be conducted in a fair and legal manner.

The Chairperson of the General Meeting of Sharcholders shall be entitled to take necessary
measures to handle the meeting reasonably, in accordance with the approved agenda and reflect

the wishes of the majority of participants.

If the chairperson adjourns or suspends the General Meeting of Shareholders in contravention
of Clause 6 of this Article, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall elect another person from
the meeting to replace the chairperson to direct the meeting until the meeting ends; all

resolutions adopted at that meeting are enforceable.

The convenor of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be entitled to request shareholders
or authorized representatives to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders to be subject to
inspection or other lawful and reasonable security measures. In case any sharcholder or
authorized representative fails to comply with the above-mentioned inspection regulations or
security measures, the convenor of the General Meeting of Shareholders may, after careful
consideration, refuse or expel the aforementioned shareholder or representative from the

General Meeting,

The convenor of the General Meeting of Shareholders, after careful consideration, may take

such measures as the Board of Directors deems appropriate to:
Arrange seats at the meeting place of the General Meeting of Sharcholders;

Ensure the safety of individuals presented at meeting locations.

Create conditions for shareholders to attend (or continue to attend) the General Meeting;

The convenor of the General Meeting of Sharcholders has the full rights to change the above-
mentioned measures and apply all necessary measures. The applicable measures can be the

1ssuance of an entry permit or the use of other forms of choice.

In case the above-mentioned measures are applied at the General Meeting of Shareholders, the
convener of the General Meeting of Shareholders when determining the location of the General

Meeting may:

Notice that the meeting will be conducted at the location specified in the notice and that the

presiding chairman of the meeting will be presented there ("Main venue of the m eeting");

Arrange and organize shareholders or authorized representatives who are unable to attend the
meeting under this Article or who wish to participate at a location other than the main venue of

the meeting to attend the meeting at the same time;

The notice of the organization of the meeting does not need io specify the organizational

measures under this Article. .

Under such Terms and Conditions (unless circumstances required otherwise), all shareholders

shall be deemed to attend the General Meeting at the Main Venue of the General Meeting,

The Company shall hold the General Meeting of Shareholders at least once a year. The Annual

General Meeting of Sharcholders shall not be held in the form of collecting written opinions.

The Company is applied modern technology to organize the General Meeting of Shareholders.
Relevant contents are specified in the internal regulations on corporate governance. In this case,
the Company is responsible for ensuring that shareholders can attend and vote through online
meetings, electronic voting or other electronic forms as stiplulated in Article 144 of the Law on
Enterprises and Clause 3, Article 273 of the Decree No. 155/ND-CP of the Government dated
December 31, 2020 detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on

Securities.
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ARTICLE 21. Approval of the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders

il

A resolution on the following contents shall be approved in case of the number of shareholders
1epresenting 65% or more of the total number of votes of all shareholders attending the mecting
and voting at the meeting, except for the cases specified in Clauses 3, 4 and 6, Article 148 of
the Law on Enterprises:

Classes of shares and the total number of shares of each class;
Change of business lines, trades and fields;
Change the organizational structure of the Company management;

Projects on investment or sale of assets valued at least 35% of the total value of assets are
recorded in the most recent financial statements of the Company, unless the charter of the
Company stipulates other ratios or values;

Reorganization and dissolution of the Company;

Other resolutions shall be passed when they are approved by the number of shareholders
representing at least 50% of the voting shares of all attending sharcholders, except in the cases
specified in Clause 1 of this Article and Clauses 3, 4 and 6, Article 148 of the Law on
Enterprises.

Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders passed equal to 100% of the total number
of voting shares are legal and effective even if the order and procedures for convening and
approving such resolutions violate the provisions of the Law on Enterprises and the company's
charter.

In case a sharcholder or group of shareholders requests the Court or Arbitrator to annul the
resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders as prescribed in Article 24 of this Charter,
such resolution shall remain effective until the decision to annul such resolution of the Court or
Arbitrator takes effect. Except for the case of application of provisional emergency measures
under decisions of competent agencies. In case the decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders is annulled by the decision of the Court or the Arbitrator, the convenor of the
annulment meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders may consider reorganizing the
General Meeting of Shareholders within 60 (sixty) days according to the order procedures
specified in the Law on Enterprises and this Charter. |

ARTICLE 22. Authority and procedures for poll in writing in order to pass resolutions of

b)

General Meeting of Shareholders

The authority and procedures for poll in writing in order to pass resolutions of General Meeting
of Shareholders shall be implemented as below:

The Board of Directors is entitled to vote by the poll in order to pass a resolution of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders if it thinks for the interests of Company.

The Board of Directors prepares the voting cards, draft resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, documents explaining the draft resolutions and send to all shareholders with
voting rights; at least 10 days before the deadline they shall be returned. The request and manner
of sending voting slips and accompanied documents shall comply with the Clause 3 Article 18
of this Charter:

The voting ballot must contain the following basic details:
Name, head office address, and business code number;

Purpose;
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c)

b)

c)

Full name, permanent residential address, nationality, and citizen identity card, identity card,
passport or other lawful personal identification in respect of a shareholder being an individual;
name, business code number or number of establishment decision, head office address of a
sharcholder being an organization or full name, permanent residential address, nationality,
citizen identity card, identity card or passport or other lawful personal identification of the
authorized representative of a shareholder being an organization; number of shares of each class
and number of votes of the sharcholder;

Issues to be passed to be voted;

Voting options include in favour, again or abstention;

Deadline to return answered feedback form to the Company;

Full names and signature of the chairman of the Board of Directors.

Shareholders can return the voting card to the Company by mail, fax or e-mail according to the
following regulations:

By mail. The voting slip must bear the signature of the shareholder being an individual, and of
the authorized representative or of the legal representative of the shareholder being an
organization. The voting slip returned to the company must be enclosed in a sealed envelope
and not be opened by any person prior to vote- counting;

By fax or electronic mail: The voting slip sent to the company by fax or electronic mail must
be keep confidential until the time of counting of votes;

The voting slips returned to the company after the expiry shown in its contents or opened in the
case of sending by mail and disclosed in the case of sending by fax or electronic mail shall be
invalid. Failing to return shall be deemed to waive the vote.

The Board of Directors shall organize the vote-counting and prepare the minutes of vote
counting in the presence of the Supervisory Board or non-executive shareholders in the
Company. The minutes of vote-counting shall include the following basic details:

Name, head office address, and business code number;
Purpose and issues for the poll to be passed a resolution;

Number of shareholders with total numbers of voting share, classifying the votes into valid and
invalid and method of sending votes and a list of the shareholders in the vote;

Total number of votes in favour, against and abstention;
Passed issues and the voting rates passed accordingly;

Full names and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the person in charge of
supervising the vote-counting, and person in charge of counting. The members of Board, person
in charge of counting and supervising the vote-counting are jointly liable for the truthfulness
and accuracy of the minutes of vote-counting, and are jointly liable for any loss arising from a
resolution which is passed due to an untruthful or inaccurate counting of votes.

The minutes of vote-counting and resolutions must be sent to shareholders within fifteen (15)
days from the date of completion of vote-counting. They may be published on the website of
the Company instead within 24 hours from the date of completion of vote-counting,

The final voting slips, minutes of vote-counting, passed resolution and any related documents
sent with all poll shall be kept at the registered office of Company.

The resolution shall be passed in the form of a written consultation of shareholders if the number
of shareholders owning more than 50% of the total number of votes of all shareholders with the
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rights to vote in favor or is valid as the resolution passed at the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

ARTICLE 23. Resolutions, Minutes of General Meeting of Sharcholders

T

g)

h)

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be shown in the minutes and sound recorded or
recorded and stored in other electronic forms. The minutes must be prepared in Vietnamese and
also be in foreign languages and must include following main details:

Name, head office address, and business code number;
Time and location of meeting;

Contents and agenda of the meeting;

Full names of the chairperson and secretary;

Summary of developments of meeting and opinions stated in the General Meeting of
Shareholders on each matter set out in the agenda;

Number of shareholders and total number of votes of attending shareholders, list of registered
sharcholders and representatives of shareholders attending the meeting with the total number
of their shares and corresponding total number of votes;

The total number of votes for each voting issue, clearly stating the voting method, the total
number of valid votes, invalid, in favor, against and without opinions; the corresponding ratio
fo the total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting;

Passed issued and corresponding percentage of votes in favour;

Signature of the chairperson and secretary. In case the chairperson or secretary refuses to sign
the minutes of the meeting, this minutes shall take effect if they are si gned by all other members
of the Board of Directors attending the meeting and have all the contents as prescribed in this
Clause. The minutes of the meeting clearly state that the chairperson and secretary refused to
sign the minutes of the meeting.

The minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be completed and approved prior to
closing of the meeting. The chairperson and secretary of the meeting must be jointly liable for
the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the minutes.

The minutes prepared in Vietnamese and foreign language versions shall be equal legal validity.
In the case of any difference in the contents of Vietnamese version and foreign language
version, the contents in the Vietnamese version shall prevail.

The resolution, the minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the appendix to the list of
shareholders registering to attend the meeting with the signatures of the sharcholders, the
written authorization to attend the meeting, all documents attached to the minutes (if any) and
relevant documents enclosed with the notice of invitation to the meeting must be disclosed in
accordance with the law on information disclosure on the market securities and must be kept at
the head office of the Company.

ARTICLE 24. Demand for cancellation of resolutions of General Meeting or Shareholders

Trong thoi han 90 ngay ké tir ngdy nhén duoc nghi quyét hoic bién ban hop Dai hoi dong cd
dong hogc bién ban két qua kiém phiéu ldy y kién Dai hoi ddng cb dong, cb dong hodic nhom
c6 dong quy dinh tai khoan 2 Didu 115 Luét Doanh nghiép ¢6 quyén yéu cAu Toa 4n hodc Trong
tai xem xét, hity bo nghi quyét hofic mdt phén ndi dung nghi quyét Dai hoi ddng cb dong trong
cac truong hop sau day:

Within ninety (90) days from the date of receipt of the minutes of the General Meeting of
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Shareholders or the minutes of vote-counting results by the poll from the General Meeting of
Sharcholders, a shareholder or a group of shareholders stipulated in Clause 2 Article 115 of
Law on Enterprises is entitled to request a court or an arbitrator to consider and cancel a
resolution or part of resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders in the following cases:

The sequence, procedures for convening the meeting and making the decision of the General
Meeting of Shareholders seriously violate Law on Enterprise and the Company Charter, except
in the case stipulated in Clause 3 Article 21 of this Charter.

The contents of resolution breach the law or the Charter.

CHAPTER VII : BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ARTICLE 25. Candidacy, nomination of members of the Board of Directors

I

a)

o
o

h)

In case the candidates have been identified in advance, information related to the candidates of
the Board of Directors shall be included in the documents of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders and published at least ten (10) days prior to the opening date of the General
Meeting of Shareholders on the website of the Company so that Shareholders can study such
candidates before leaving ticket. Candidates for the Board of Directors shall make a written
commitment to the truthfulness, accuracy and reasonableness of the personal information
disclosed and shall commit to performing their duties in an honest manner if elected as a
member of the Board of Directors. Information related to candidates for the Board of Directors
shall be announced including the following basic details:

Full name, date of birth;
Educational level;
Professional qualifications;
Work progress;

Companies in which the candidate is holding positions as members of the Board of Directors
and other managerial positions;

An evaluation report on the candidate's contribution to the Company, in case the candidate is
currently a member of the Board of Directors of the Company;

Benefits related to the Company (if any);

Full name of the shareholder or group of sharcholders nominating such candidate (if any);

Other information (if any).

Shareholders holding ordinary shares have the right to combine the number of voting rights to
nominate candidates for the Board of Directors. Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding
from 10% to less than 20% of the total number of voting shares may nominate one (01)
candidate; from 20% to less than 30% shall be nominated a maximum of two (02) candidates;
from 30% to less than 40% shall be nominated a maximum of three (03) candidates; from 40%
to less than 50% may nominate a maximum of four (04) candidates; from 50% to less than 60%
shall be nominated for a maximum of five (05) candidates; from 60% to less than 70% may
nominate a maximum of six (06) candidates; from 70% to 80% shall be nominated a maximum

of seven (07) candidates; and from 80% to less than 90%, a maximum of eight (08) candidates
will be nominated.

In case the number of candidates for the Board of Directors through nomination and candidacy
is still insufficient for the necessary number, the incumbent Board of Directors may nominate
additional candidates or organize the nomination according to the mechanism prescribed by the
Company in the Internal Regulation on corporate governance. The procedures for the
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incumbent Board of Directors to recommend candidates for the Board of Directors must be
clearly announced and must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders before
making the nomination in accordance with law.

ARTICLE 26. Terms of office and number of members of Board of Directors

1.

d)

e)

The Board of Directors shall have five (05) members. The term of office of members of the
Board shall not exceed five (05) years; and they may be re-clected for an unlimited number of
terms. An individual may only be elected as an independent member of the Board of Directors
of a company for no more than 02 consecutive terms.

The structure of the Board of Directors with the number of independent members of the Board
of Directors must ensure at least 01 independent member in case that the Company has the
number of members of the Board of Directors from 03 to 05 members; At least 02 independent
members in case that the Company has the number of members of the Board of Directors from
06 to 08 members; At least 03 independent members in case that the Company has the number
of members of the Board of Directors from 09 to 11 members.

A member of the Board of Directors shall be ineligible as a member of the Board of Directors
in the following cases:

Not being eligible to be a member of the Board of Directors under the provisions of the Law on
Enterprises or prohibited by law from being a member of the Board of Directors;

Submission of resignation letter;

Has a mental disorder and another member of the Board of Directors has professional evidence
that the person is no longer capable of conduct;

Failing to attend meetings of the Board of Directors continuously within six (06) consecutive
months, except for force majeure cases;

Pursuant to the decision of the General Meeting of Sharcholders;
Being convicted by a court with a legally effective judgment or decision;

Not being honest in performing their duties and powers or abusing their positions and powers
to benefit themselves or others;

Providing false personal information when submitting to the Company as a candidate for the
Board of Directors.

A member of the Board of Directors must satisfy the following criteria and conditions:
Being a Vietnamese citizen, permanently residing in Vietnam;

Having sufficient civil act capacity, professional qualifications, management capacity,
experience in the main field of operation of the Company;

Have good health, moral qualities, honesty, integrity, understanding and sense of law
observance;

Not subject to prohibition from holding management and executive positions in enterprises as
prescribed by law.

Other standards as prescribed by law.

- The appointment of members of the Board of Directors must be notified in accordance with the

provisions of the law on securities and securities market.
A member of the Board of Directors is not necessarily a sharcholder of the Company.

Standards of members of Board of Qutside Directors:
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a)

b)

c)

Not working for a company or a subsidiary of the company; must not have worked for the
Company or its subsidiaries for at least 3 consecutive years.

Not receiving salary or remuneration from the company, except for allowances to which
members of the Board of Directors are entitled as prescribed;

Not being a person whose spouse, natural father, adoptive father, natural mother, adoptive
mother, adoptive mother, natural child, adopted child, brother, sister or sibling who is a major
shareholder of the company; being a manager of the company or a subsidiary of the company;

Not directly or indirectly owning at least 1% of the total voting shares of the company:

Not being a member of the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee under the Board of
Directors of the company for at least 5 consecutive years.

Not being a major shareholder or representative of a major sharcholder or a related person of a
major shareholder of the company;

Not working at organizations providing legal consultancy and audit services for the company
in the last two (02) years;

Not being a partner or related person of a partner whose annual transaction value with the
company accounts for thirty percent (30%) or more of the total turnover or total value of goods
and services purchased by the company in the last two (02) years.

[ndependent members of the Board of Directors must notify the Board of Directors that they no
longer fully meet the conditions specified in Clause 10, Article 25 and automatically cease to
be independent members of the Board of Directors from the date on which they do not fully
meet the conditions. The Board of Directors must notify the independent members of the Board
of Directors that they no longer fully meet the conditions at the nearest General Meeting of
Shareholders or convene a meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders to elect additional
or replacement independent members of the Board of Directors within 06 months from the date
of receipt of the notice of the independent member set up relevant Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 27. Rights and obligations of the Board of Directors

L

b)

c)

d)

Business activities and works of the Company shall be under the control of or direction of the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors (Board) is the managing body of Company and has
full authority to make decisions in the name of Company and to exercise the rights and
obligations of Company which do not fall under the authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

The rights and obligations of the Board of Directors are stipulated by law, Charter, internal
regulations of the Company and decisions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders. Specifically,
the Board of Directors has the following rights and tasks:

To make decisions on medium-term developmental strategies and plans, and annual business
plans of Company;

To determine operational objectives on the basis of strategic objectives approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders;

To appoint, dismiss, sign contracts, terminate contracts with Director and other executives and
deciding on their salaries;

To supervise and direct the Director and other executives:

To make decisions on the organizational structure, to make decisions on the establishment of
subsidiary companies, branches and representative offices and capital contribution to or
purchase of shares of other enterprises;
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f)

f)

g
h)

i)

To settle complaints of the Company against the business operator as well as to decide to select
the representative of the Company to resolve issues related to legal proceedings against such
cxecutives;

To recommend the classes of shares and total number of shares of each class which may be
offered;

To recommend bonds, convertible bonds and warrant-linked bonds which may be offered:;

To make decisions on the selling price of shares and bonds of Company in case of authorization
of the Board of Directors;

To appoint, dismiss, remove the managing director or other executives of the Company when
the Board of Directors considers as a supreme interest of the Company. The above-mentioned
dismissal must not be contrary to the contractual rights of the dismissed individuas (if any):

To recommend the dividend rates to be paid, to make decisions on the time-limit and procedures
for payment of dividends or for dealing with losses incurred in the business operations;

To recommend re-organization or dissolution, or to request bankruptcy of Company;

To report to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the appointment of the Managing Director
by the Board of Directors.

To make decision on internal management rules of Company after being approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders to effectively protect sharcholders;

To approve the agenda and contents of documents for the meetings of the General Meeting of
Shareholders; to convene meetings of the General Meeting of Shareholders or to obtain the poll
for General Meeting of Shareholders to pass the decisions;

To submit audited annual financial statements to the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The following issues must be approved by the Board of Directors:

To establish branches or representative offices of the Company;

To establish of subsidiaries of the Company;

Within the scope specified in Clause 2, Article 153 of the Law on Enterprises and except for
the cases specified in Clause 2, Article 138 and Clause 1, which must be approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors shall decide on the implementation,
amendment and canceilation of major contracts of the Company;

To appoint and dismiss persons authorized by the Company to be commercial representatives
and lawyers of the Company;

The borrowing of debts and the performance of mortgages, guarantees, and indemnities of the
Corzpany;

Investments that are not part of the business plan or investments exceeding 10% of the plan
value;

The purchase or sale of shares of other companies established in Vietnam or abroad;

The valuation of assets contributed to the Company is not in cash in the issuance of shares or
bonds of the Company, including gold, land use rights, intellectual property rights, technology
and technclogical know-how;

The repurchase or recovery of not more than 10% of the total number of shares of each type
offered for sale in twelve (12) months;

Business matters or transactions that the Council decides require approval within the scope of
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k)

its powers and responsibilities;
To decide on the price of repurchase or recovery of shares of the Company;

The Board of Directors must report to the General Meeting of Shareholders on ifs activities, in
particular on the Board's supervision of the CEO and other executives during the fiscal year. In
case the Board of Directors fails to submit a report to the General Meeting of Sharehold ers, the
annual financial statements of the Company will be considered invalid and have not been
approved by the Board of Directors.

Unless otherwise provided by law and the Charter, the Board of Directors may authorize
subordinate employees and other executives to act on behalf of the Company.

ARTICLE Z8, Remuneration, salary and other benefits of members of the Board of Directors

i.

Members of the Board of Directors {excluding alternate authorized representatives) shall
reccive remuneration for their work as members of the Board of Directors. The total
remuneration for the Board of Directors shall be decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. This remuneration shall be divided among the members of the Board of Directors
as agreed upon in the Board of Directors or equally in case of failure to reach an agreement.

The total amount paid to each member of the Board of Directors, including remuneration,

expenses, commissions, the right to purchase shares and other benefits enjoyed from the
Company, ifs subsidiaries, associated companies and other companies of which the memhers

of the Board of Directors are representatives of the contributed capital, must be disclosed in

detail in the Company's annual report Company. The remuneration of the members of the Board
of Directors must be expressed in a separate section in the Company's annual financial
statements.

a member of the Board of Directors who holds an executive position (including the position of
Chairman or Vice Chairman), or a member of the Board of Directors who serves on
subcommittees of the Beard, or performs other duties which, in the opinion of the Board, are
outside the scope of the ordinary duties of @ member of the Board, may be paid additional
vemuneration in the form of a lump-sum remuneration on a one-time basis, salary, commission,
percentage of profit, or in another form at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Mernbers of the Board of Directois shall be entitied to payment of all expenses of travel, .oard,
lodging, anc other reasonable expsases incurred by them in the performance of their duties as
members of the Beard, including sxpenses incurred in attending meetings of the Board, or
subcommiitees of the Board of irectors or the General Meeting of Shareholders.

ARTICLE 29, Chairman of the Bozind of Directore

[ %Y

The Roara chall elect a member of the Board te act as the Chairman.

The Chairmen of the RBeard of Nivectors shall obligate to prepare programs, documients,
convene and preside over the Ge:sial Meeting oi Sharehoiders and meztings of the Board of
Directors, and has other rights and obligations specified in this Charter and the Law on
Enterprises.

The Chairman of the Board of Dircetors shali be responsible for ensuring that the Board of
Directers sends annual financial statements, reports on operations of the Company, audit reports
and inspection repcits of the Board of Directors to shareholders at the General Meeting of
Sharenolders;

¢ Chairman of the Board of Directors may be dismissed at the decision of the Board of
Directors. In case the Chairman of the Board of Directors resigns or is dismissed, the Board of
Directors must elect a replacement within ten (10) days.
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ARTICLE 30. Meetings of the Board of Directors

b

The Chairman of the Board shall be elected at the initial meeting of a term of the Board within
seven (07) business days from the date of completion of the election of the Board for that term.
Such meeting shall be convened and chaired by the member who obtains the highest number of
votes or the highest percentage of votes. If two or more members obtain the same highest votes

or the same highest percentage of votes, the members shall elect by a majority vote to select a

person amongst them to convene the meeting,

Chairman of the Board of Directos shall convene the Meetings of the Board of Directors on a
regular basis or extraordinarily, prepare meeting agenda, meeting time and meeting venue at
least three (03) days prior to scheduled meeting date. The Chairman of the Board may converne

a meeting of the Board when it is considered as necessary, but the meeting must be held ev ery
quarter.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors must convene a meeting of the Board made in writing
and must specify the objectives and issues to be discussed, and decisions within the auf‘lcmn,
of the Board in any of the following circumstances:

At the request of Chairman or at least five (05) other managers;
At the request of at least two executive members of the Board;
At the request of Independent member of the Board of Directors.

The Meeting of the Board of Directors stipiulated at Clause 3 this Article must be convened
within seven (07) business days after the request of the meeting. If the Chairman fails to
convene a meeting of the Board at the request, the Chairman shall be liable for losses caused to
the Company; the person making the request is entitled to convene a meeting of the Board nf
Directors stipulated at Clause 3 of this Article.

In case of request of an independent auditing firm to audit the financial statements of the
Company, the Chairman of the Board of Directors must convene a meeting of the Board of
Directors to discuss the audit report and situation of the Company

The meeting venue and meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted at the reglslen,d

address of the Company or other addresses in Vietnam or abroad under the decision of the .

Chairrs&n of the Board sf Directors and W1t" the unanimous consent of the Boar¢ »f D1rect01s

Notice and Meeting Agenda: Notice of the ;,Qard meeting must be sent to the members of the

Boaid of Directors at least three (03) wos.«ing days before the meeting is held, the members of
the u,ard of Directors may refuse the o tu ¢ of invitation to the meeting in + ’1 iiing and this
refus:} may be changed or canceled in wrii! ng by the members of the Board co-:dministrators.

The vatice of the meeting of the Board of “irectors must be made in Vietnamer= and must be -

fully notified of the agenda, time and place - £ the meeting, enclosed with necessz ry documes:ts
on the issues to be discussed and veted on # t-m meeting and the voting votes of iembers.

The notice of invitation to the meeting shali be sent by post, fax, e-mail or ofher means, but

musi ensure that the address of each member of the Board of Directors and the meeting
corponents registered at the Company must bie reached,

The meeting of the Board shall be cor.ducted where three quartess (3/4) or more of the total
members are in attendance or under the attendznce of thre representatives ‘f approved by most
of raembers of the Board of the Directors.

If the convened meeting does not have sufficient aitending members as stipulated, it shall be
convened again within seven (07) days from the intended date of the first meeting. In this case,
the meeting shall be conducted if there is moze Lhan half of number of members of the Board
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b)

10.

il

b)

c)

d)

12

of Directors attending the meeting,

A meeting of the Board of Directors may be held in the form of an online conference between
members of the Board of Directors when all or some members are in different locations,
provided that each member participating in the meeting may:

Listen to each other member of the Board of Directors speaking in the meeting;

Speak to all other participants at the same time. Communication between members may be
conducted directly by telephone or other means of communication, or a combination of all of
these methods. A member of the Board of Directors who participates in such a meeting is
deemed to be "present” at that meeting. The place where the meeting is held under this
regulation is the place where the largest group of members of the Board of Directors gathers,
or the place where the Chairman of the meeting is present. '

Decisions adopted during a legally held and conducted telephone meeting shall be effective
immediately upon the conclusion of the meeting, but must be confirmed by the signatures in
the minutes of all members of the Board attending this meeting,

Members of the Board of Directors may send ballots to the meeting by mail, fax or email. In
case of sending ballot papers to the meeting by mail, the ballot papers must be enclosed in
sealed envelopes and must be delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Directors at least one
(01) hour before the opening of the meeting. Ballots may only be opened in the presence of all
participants.

Voting

Except for the provisions of Point b, Clause 11 of this Article, each member of the Board of
Directors or an authorized person as prescribed in Clause 8 of this Article who is directly present
as an individual at the meeting of the Board of Directors shall have one vote;

A member of the Board of Directors may not vote on contracts, transactions or proposals in
which such member or a person related to such member has interests and such interests conflict
or may conflict with the interests of the Company. Members of the Board of Directors shall not
be counted towards the minimum number of delegates required to be present to be able to hold
a Board meeting on decisions for which the member does not have the right to vote;

According to the provisions of Point d, Clause 11 of this Article, when there are issues ariging
in ameeting of the Board of Directors related to the interests or voting rights of members of the
Board of Directors but such members do not voluntarily give up their voting rights, such arising
issues shall be forwarded to the chairman of the meeting and the judgment of the relevant
chairman to all other members of the Board of Directors shall be valid as a final decision, unless
the nature or scope of interests of the relevant Board r:r}cmbers has not been fully announécljd;

A member of the Board of Directors who benefits from a contract specified at Points a and b,
Clause 4, Article 37 of this Charter shall be deemed to have a significant interest in such
confract.

Public disclosure of relevant interests: Members of the Board of Directors who directly or
indirectly benefit from a contract or transaction that has been signed or are expected to be signed
with the Company and know that they have an interest in it, will have to disclose the nature and
content of such interests at the meeting at which the Board of Directors first considers the issue
of signing this contract or transaction. In case a member of the Board of Directors does not
know that he or she and the related person have an interest at the time the contract or transaction
is signed with the Company, this member must make it public at the first meeting of the Board
of Directors held after this member knows that he or she has an interest or will have an interest
in the transaction or inter-contractual official,
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13

14.

Majority vote: The Board of Directors approves resolutions and makes decisions on the basis
of following the approval of the majority of members of the Board of Directors present (over
50%). In case the number of votes in favor and against is equal, the vote of the Chairman will
be the decisive vote.

Resolutions in the form of written consultation shall be adopted on the basis of the approval of
the majority of members of the Board of Directors with the right to vote. This Resolution is as
effective and valid as the resolution adopted by the members of the Board of Directors at the
meeting convened and organized according to custom.

Minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors: The Chairman of the Board of Directors is
responsible for forwarding the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors to the members
and such minutes as authentic evidence of the work conducted in such meetings, unless there is
an objection to the contents of the minutes within ten (10) days from the date of transfer.
Minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors shall be made in Vietnamese and must be signed
by the chairman and the person recording the minutes.

In case the chairperson or the person taking the minutes refuses to sign the minutes of the
meeting, if all other members of the Board of Directors attend and agree to approve the minutes
of the meeting and have all the contents as prescribed at Points a, b, ¢, d, dd, e, g and h, Clause
I, Article 158 of the Law on Enterprises, this Record shall take effect. The minutes of the
meeting clearly state that the chairman and the person recording the minutes refuse to si gn the
minutes of the meeting. The signatory of the minutes of the meeting shall be jointly responsible
for the accuracy and truthfulness of the contents of the minutes of the meeting of the Board of
Directors. The chairman and the person taking the minutes shall be personally responsible for
the damage caused to the enterprise due to refusal to sign the minutes of the meeting in
accordance with the company's charter and relevant laws.

ARTICLE 31. Subcommittees of the Board of Directors

L.

The Board of Directors may establish a subordinate subcommittee to be in charge of
development policies, personnel, remuneration, and internal audit. The number of members of
the subcommittee shall be decided by the Board of Directors, but there should be at least three
(03) persons including members of the Board of Directors and external members. Independent
members of the Board of Directors/non-executive members of the Board of Directors should
constitute a majority in the sub-committee and one of these members shall be appointed as the
Head of the sub-committee at the decision of the Board of Directors. The activities of the sub-
committee must comply with the regulations of the Board of Directors. The résolution of the
subcommittee takes effect only when a majority of members attend and vote for approval at the
meeting of the subcommittee who are members of the Board of Directors.

Actions to implement decisions of the Board of Directors, or of subcommittees under the Board
of Directors, or of persons who have the status of members of subcommittees of the Board of
Directors must be in accordance with current legal provisions and the provisions of the Charter
of the Company.

ARTICLE 32. Person in charge of corporate governance

i

a)

The Board of Directors shall appoint at least one (01) person to be the Person in charge of
corporate governance to support the effective conduct of corporate governance activities. The
term of office of the person in charge of corporate governance shall be decided by the Board of
Directors, a maximum of five (05) years.

The person in charge of corporate governance must meet the following criteria:

Knowledge of the law;
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b)

)

g)

h)

Not working for an independent auditing firm which is auditing financial statements of the
Company;

Other criteria as prescribed by law, this Charter and decisions of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors may dismiss the person in charge of corporate governance when
necessary but not contrary to the current provisions of the law on labor. The Board of Directors
may appoint an Assistant Person in charge of corporate governance from time to time.

The person in charge of corporate governance has the following rights and obligations:

Advising the Board of Directors on organizing the General Meeting of Sharcholders in
accordance with regulations and related works between the Company and Shareholders;

To prepare meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meeting of Shareholders at the
request of the Board of Directors;

To advise the procedures of meetings;
To attend meetings;

To advise procedures for resolutions of the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions
of law;

To provide financial information, copies of the minutes of the Board of Directors meeting and
other information to members of the Board of Directors and the Controller;

To supervise and report to the Board of Directors on the information disclosure activities of the
Company.

To secure information in accordance with the provisions of law and the Charter of the
Company;

Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law and internal regulations on corporate
governance,

CHAPTER VIII : DIRECTOR AND OTHER EXECUTIVES

ARTICLE 33. Management organization

The Company has a management system that ensures that the management structure will be
accountable to the Board of Directors and subject to the supervision of the Board of Directors
in the business activities of the Company. The Company has one (01) Managing Director, Vice
Directors, Chief Accountant and other managerial titles appointed by the Board of Directors.
The appointment, dismissal or dismissal of the above-mentioned titles must be approved by a
resolution of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 34. Business Executives

L.

At the request of the Director and approved by the Board of Directors, the Company shall recruit
other executives with the number and standards in accordance with the management structure
of the Company and regulations prescribed by the Board of Directors. Business executives shall
be responsible for diligence to support the Company in achieving the goals set out in its
operations and organization.

The salary, remuneration, interests, and other terms of the employment contract for the
Managing Director shall be decided by the Board of Directors and contracts with other
executives shall be decided by the Board of Directors after consultation with the Managing
Director.

ARTICLE 35. Appointment, dismissal, duties and rights of the Director
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b)

d)

€)

Function:

The Director is the legal representative who administers the daily operations of the Company
in accordance with the objectives, plans and resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors,
in accordance with this Charter; take responsibility beyond the Board of Directors and law for
the performance of assigned rights and duties.

Appointment:

The Board of Directors shall appoint a member of the Board of Directors or another person as
a Director; signing a contract stipulating salary, remuneration and other interests. The
remuneration, salary and other interests of the Director shall be reported in the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders, expressed as a separate section in the Annual Financial Statement and
stated in the annual report of the Company.

Term of office:

The term of office of the Director shall not exceed five (05) years and may be re-appointed.
The appointment may expire based on the provisions of the labor contract. The Managing
Director is not a person who is prohibited by law from holding this position and shall meet the
standards and conditions prescribed by law and the Charter of the Company.

The rights and obligations of the Director:

To implement the resolutions of the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the business plan and investment plan of the Company approved by the Board of
Directors and the General Meeting of Sharcholders;

To decide on all issues related to the daily business of the Company which are not under the
jurisdiction of the Board of Directors, including signing on behalf of the Company financial
and commercial contracts, organizing in accordance with Clauses 4 and 5, Article 3 of this
Charter and administering the daily business activities of the Company in accordance with the
management best practices;

To propose the number and other exccutives that the Company needs to recruit for the Board
of Directors to appoint or dismiss according to internal regulations and to propose salaries,
remuneration and other benefits for other executives for the Board of Directors to decide;

To consuit with the Board of Directors to decide on the number of employees, appointments,
dismiseais, salaries, allowances, interests and other terms related to their employment contracts:

On Ocicber 31 of each year, the Director shall submit to the Board of Directors for approval
the deta’l=d business plan for the next fiscal vear on the basis of meeting the requirements of
the appropriate budget as well as the five-year financial plan;

To implement the annual business plan approved by the General Meeting of Sharehblders and
the Board of Directors;
To propose measures to improve the operation and management of the Company;

To propose a plan to pay dividends or handle losses in business;

To propose the organizational structure plan, regulations on internal management of the
Company;

To prepare long-term, annual and monthly estimates of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
estimates) for long-term, annual and quarterly management activities of the Company according
to the business plan. The annual estimate (including the balance sheet, the report on production
and business activities and the expected cash flow statement) for each fiscal year shall be
submitted to the Board of Directors for approval and shall include the information specified in
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k)

the Company's statutes;

To implement all other activities in accordance with the provisions of this Charter and the
regulations of the Company, resolutions of the Board of Directors, labor contracts of the
Director and the law.

The Director shall be responsible to the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of
Shareholders for the performance of their assigned duties and rights and shall report to these
agencies when requested.

The Director shall administer the day-to-day business of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of law, this Charter, the signed labor contract and the decision of the Board of
Directors. To be responsible to the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of Shareholders
for the performance of their assigned rights and duties and to report to these levels when
requested.

The Board of Directors may dismiss the Director when a majority of the members of the Board
of Directors have the rights to vote at the meeting to approve and appoint a new Managing
Director for a replacement.

CHAPTER IX : AUDIT COMMITTEE UNDER THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ARTICLE 36. Candidacy, nomination of members of the Audit Committee

l.

2

The Chairman of the Audit Committee and other members of the Audit Committee are
nominated by the Board of Directors and are not the executives of the Company.

The appointment of the Chairman of the Audit Committee and other members of the Audit
Committee must be approved by the Board of Directors at the meeting of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 37. Members of the Audit Committee

L.

b)

The Audit Committee has at least 02 members. The Chairperson of the audit committee shall
be an independent member of the Board of Directors. Other members of the audit committee
shall be non-execntive members of the Board of Directors.

Members of the Audit Committee shall have knowledge of accounting and auditing, have a
general understanding of the law and the operations of the Company and not fall into the
following cases:

Working in the accounting and finance department of the Company; -

Being a member or employee of an auditing organization that is approved to audit the financial

statements of the Company in the previous 03 consecutive years. sk

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee must have a university diploma or higher in one of
the majors of econcmics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, business administration, except for
the case.

ARTICLE 38. Rights and obligations of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has the rights and obligations specified in Article 161 of the Law on
Enterprises, the Charter of the Company and the following rights and obligations:

Have the rights to access documents related to the operation of the Company, communicate
with other members of the Board of Directors, Director (General Director), Chief Accountant
and other managers to collect information for the operation of the Audit Committee.

Have the rights to request representatives of approved auditing organizations to attend and
answer issues related to audited financial statements at meetings of the Audit Committee.
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Use legal, accounting or other external consultancy services when necessary.

Develop and submit to the Board of Directors policies for risk detection and management;
propose to the Board of Directors solutions to handle risks arising in the operations of the
Company.

Make a written report and send to the Board of Directors when detecting that members of the
Board of Directors, Directors (General Directors) and other managers fail to fully perform their
responsibilities as prescribed in the Law on Enterprises and the Charter of the Company.

Formulate the Regulation on operation of the Audit Committee and submit to the Board of
Directors for approval.

ARTICLE 39. Audit Committee Meetings

L

The Audit Committee shall hold the meetings at least 02 times in a year. The minutes of the
meeting shall be made in details, clearly and shall be kept in full. The person taking the minutes
and the members of the Audit Committee attending the meeting must sign the minutes of the
meeting.

The Audit Committee shall approve the decision by voting at the meeting, collecting opinions
in writing or other forms prescribed by the [Company Charter or the Audit Committee
Operation Regulation]. Each member of the Audit Committee has one vote. Unless the [Charter
of the company or the Regulation on operation of the Audit Committee] provides for a higher
rate, the decision of the Audit Committee shall be approved if approved by the majority of the
members attending the meeting; in case the number of votes is equal, the final decision belongs
to the party with the opinion of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

ARTICLE 40. Report on the activities of the independent member of the Board of Directors in

d)

€)

the Audit Committee at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Independent members of the Board of Directors in the Audit Committee are responsible for
reporting on activities at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The report on the activities of independent members of the Board of Directors in the Audit
Committee at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders must ensure the following contents;

Remuneration, operating expenses and other benefits of the Audit Committee and each member
of the Audit Committee in accordance with the Law on Enterprises and the Charter of the
Company;

Summarize the meetings of the Audit Committee and the conclusions and recommendations of
the Audit Committee;

Results of supervision of financial statements, operation and financial situation of the
Company;

An evaluation report on transactions between the Company, its subsidiaries and other
companies under the control of more than 50% of the charter capital with members of the Board
of Directors, Directors (General Directors), other executives of the enterprise and related
persons of such subjects; transactions between the Company and the company in which
members of the Board of Directors, Directors (General Directors) and other executives of the
enterprise are founding members or managers of the enterprise in the last 03 years prior to the
time of transaction;

The results of the assessment of the internal control and risk management system of the
Company;

Supervision results for the Board of Directors, Director (General Director) and other executives
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of the enterprise;

g)  The results of the evaluation of the coordination between the Audit Committee and the Board
of Directors, the Director (General Director) and shareholders.

CHAPTER X : RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND OTHER EXECUTIVES

ARTICLE 41. Responsibilities of prudence

Members of the Board of Directors, the Managing Director and other executives are responsible
for performing their duties, including those as members of subcommittees of the Board of
Directors, in an honest and prudent manner for the best interests of the Company.

ARTICLE 42. Responsibilities of honesty and avoidance of interest conflicts

. Members of the Board of Directors, Managing Director, and other executives are not allowed
to use business opportunities that may benefit the Company for personal purposes, and at the
same time, they are not allowed to use information that has not been authorized to be published
by the Company or information obtained from their positions for personal gain or for service
interests of other organizations or individuals.

2. Members of the Board of Directors, Managing Director, and other executives are required to:

a)  Notify the Board of Directors of any interests that may conflict with those of the Company,
which they may derive through economic entities, transactions, or other individuals.

b)  Disclose any transactions between the Company, its subsidiaries, or businesses in which the
Company holds over 50% of the charter capital and such members or their related parties, as
required by law.

c)  Report to the Board of Directors the name, business registration number, registered address,
and business activities of any enterprise in which they or their related parties hold capital
contributions or shares, along with the percentage and acquisition date of such ownership.

d)  Disclose to the Board of Directors the name, business registration number, registered address,
and business activities of any enterprise where their related parties jointly or solely hold over
10% of charter capital and have transactions with the Company.

3. Unless otherwise decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company shall not
provide loans, guarantees, or credit facilities to members of the Board of Directors, Managing
Director, other executives, or their related individuals and entities, except where the Company
and such entities operate within a corporate group structure (e.g., parent-subsidiary
relationships) or where otherwise permitted under specialized regulations.

4. Contracts or transactions between the Company and one of the following entities: Members of
the Board of Directors, Directors, other managers and related persons of these entities;
Shareholders owning fifty-one percent (51%) or more and related persons of such shareholders;
Shareholders, authorized representatives of shareholders owning more than ten percent (10%)
of the total common equity of the Company and their related persons; Enterprises related to the
entities specified in Clause 2, Article 164 of the Law on Enterprises shall only be valid if
approved by the following agencies:

a) The General Meeting of Shareholders approves contracts, transactions of borrowing, lending,
selling assets with a value greater than ten percent (10%) of the total value of the Company's
assets recorded in the most recent financial statements;

b) The General Meeting of Shareholders approves transactions with a value of thirty-five
percent (35%) or more of the total value of assets recorded in the Company's financial
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statements;

¢) The Board of Directors approves transactions with a value of less than thirty-five percent
(35%) of the total asset value recorded on the Company's financial statements.

ARTICLE 43. Liability for damages and compensation

L.

b)

Liability for damages.

Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Internal Audit Board, Directors and other
executives who violate the obligation to act honestly and carefully, and fail to fulfill their
obligations with diligence and professional competence shall be liable for damages caused by
their violations.

Compensation.

The Company shall indemnify any person who has been, is or may become a party to any claim,
lawsuit or prosecution (including civil or administrative cases and not lawsuits initiated by the
Company) if such person has been or is a member of the Board of Directors, Director, other
manager, employee or authorized representative of the Company (or its subsidiary), or such
person has been or is acting at the request of the Company (or its subsidiary) as a member of
the Board of Directors, business manager, employee or authorized representative of a Company,
provided that such person has acted honestly, carefully and diligently in the best interests of or
not against the best interests of the Company, in compliance with the law and there is no
evidence that such person has breached his or her responsibilities.

When performing functions, duties or performing work authorized by the Company, members
of the Board of Directors, the Company's Director, other executives, employees or authorized
representatives of the Company shall be compensated by the Company when they become a
party involved in complaints, lawsuits, and prosecutions (except for lawsuits initiated by the
Company) in the following cases:

Acted honestly, carefully, diligently for the benefit and not in conflict with the interests of the
Company;

Complying with the law and there is no evidence confirming that they did not fulfill their
responsibilities.

Compensation costs include costs incurred (including attorneys' fees), judgment costs, fines,
and payments actually incurred or considered reasonable when resolving these cases within the
framework permitted by law. The Company mey purchase insurance for such persons to avoid
the above compensation responsibilities.

CHAPTER XI: RIGHT TO INSPECT CONMIPANY BOOKS AND RECORDS
ARTICLE 44. Right to Inspect Books and Records

Is

A shareholder or group of shareholders referred to in Clause 2, Article 25 of this Charter has
the right, either directly or through a lawyer or an authorized representative, to submit a written
request to inspect, during working hours and at the Company's headquarters, the list of
shareholders and the minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders, as well as to make copies
or exfracts of such records. Any inspection request made by a representing lawyer or other
authorized representative of a shareholder must be accompanied by a power of attorney from
the shareholder they represent or a notarized copy of such power of attorney.

Members of the Board of Directors, Managing Director, and other executives have the ri ght to
inspect the Company's shareholder register, list of shareholders, and other books and records of
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the Company for purposes related to their positions, provided that such information is kept
confidential.

3. The Company must keep this Charter and any amendments thereto, the Enterprise Registration
Certificate, regulations, documents proving asset ownership, minutes of the General Meeting
of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, reports of the Board of Directors and the Internal
Audit Committee, annual financial statements, accounting books, and other documents as
required by law at its headquarters or another location, provided that shareholders and the
Business Registration Authority are informed of the storage location of these documents.

4. This Charter must be published on the Company's website.

CHAPTER XII : EMPLOYEES AND TRADE UNION
AKTICLE 45. Employces and Trade Union

1. Managing Director must develop plans for approval by the Board of Directors regarding matters
related to employee recruitment, termination, salaries, social insurance, benefits, rewards, and
disciplinary actions for employees and company executives.

2. Managing Director must develop plans for approval by the Board of Directors concerning the
Company's relationship with recognized trade union organizations in accordance with best
management standards, practices, and policies, as well as the practices and policies stipulated
in this Charter, the Company's regulations, and applicable laws.

CHAPTER XII : PROFIT ALLOCATION
ARTIECLE 46, Profit Allocation

I. The General Meeting of Sharcholders shall determine the annual dividend payout ratio and
method of dividend payment from the Company’s retainied earnings.

2. The Board of Directors may decide on interim dividend payments if it deems such payments
appropriate based on the Company's profitability.

|95 ]

The Company shall not pay interest on dividend payments or any other payments related to any
class of shares.

4. The Board of Directors may propose that the General Meeting of Shareholders approve the
payment of dividends wholly or partly in shares, and the Board of Directors shall execute such
a decision.

wh

[t dividends or other payments related to a class of shares are paid in cash, the Company shail
pay them in Vietnaix sse Dong. Payments may be made directly or through banks based on the
oank account details nrovided by the shareholders. If the Company has made a transfer based -
on the correct bank details provided by the shareholder and the shareholder does not receive the.
funds, the Company shall not be liable for the amount transferred. Dividend payments for shares
listed or registered fo- trading on the Stock Exchange may be made through securities *
companies cr the Vietnam Securities Depository Center.

6. With the approval of the General Meeting of Sharcholders, the Board of Directors may decide
and announce that holders of ordinary shares may receive dividends in the form of additional
ordina:y shares instead of cash. The additional shares issued as dividends shall be considered
fully peid shares, based on the principle that the value of the dividend shares must be equivalent
to the cash dividend amount. '

7. Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises and the Law on Securities, the Board of Directors may pass
a resolution specifying a record date to determine the list of shareholders. Based on this date,
registered shareholders or holders of other securities shall be entitled to receive dividends,
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interest, profit distribution, shares, notices, and other documents.

8. Other matters related to profit allocation shall be carried out in accordance with the provisions
of the law.

CHAPTER X1V : BANK ACCOUNTS, RESERVE FUNDS, FISCAL YEAR, AND
ACCOUNTING REGIME

ARTICLE 47, Bank Accounts

I. The Company shall open accounts at a Viethamese bank or foreign banks authorized to operate
in Vietnam.

2. With prior approval from the competent authorities, if necessary, the Company may open bank
accounts abroad in accordance with legal regulations.

3. Tne Ceupany shall carry out all payments and accounting transactions through its VND cr
foreign currency accounts at the banks whers it holds accounts.

ARTICLE 458, Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year begins on the first (01) day of January cach year and ends on the
thirty-first (31) day of December of the same year. The first fiscal year starts from the date of
issuance of the Enterprise Registration Certificate and ends on the thirty-first (31) day of
December immediately following the issuance date of such certificate.

ARTICLE 49. Accounting Regime .

I.. The Company shall apply the Vietnamese Accounting Standards (VAS) or another accounting
system approved by the Ministry of Finance.

2. The Company shall maintain accounting records in Vietnamese. The Company shall keep
accounting records appropriate to the type of business activities it engages in, in accordance
with legal regulations. These records must be accurate, up-to-date, systematic, and sufﬁmcnt to
verify and explain the Company’s transactions.

3. The Company shall use Vietnamese Dong (VND) as the currency unit for accounting purposes.
CHAPTER XV : ANNUAL REPORTS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, A.ND

i (NFORMATION DISCLOSURE RESPONSIEZLITIES
cARTICLE 50. Annual, Semi-Anaual, and Quarterly Financial Statemer s

‘1. Thet Comipany shall prepare and submit financial statements in acco-dance with the regulationis
ot of the State Securities Commicfon, the competent tax authorities, - = Stock Bxchange, and the

Business Registration Authority, as applicable from time to time.

The ar-mal financial statements “aust incluce: a business performance report that Gt ifully and
objeciily reflects the Compary’s : profit/loss situation for the fiscal year, a financizi siatements
that acc:.rately and objectively plrm,nts the v ompany’s operations up to the reperting date, a
cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements.

i

3. If the Company is a parent company, in addition to the annua! finanzial statements, it must
prepare a consolidated balance sheet reflecting the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries at the end of each fiscal year.

4. The Company must prepare and disclese semi-annual and quarterly reports in accordance it h
the regulations of the State Securities Commission, the Stock Exchange, and submit them to
the relevant tax authorities and Business Fegistration Authority in compliance with legal
requirements.
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Audited annual financial statements (including the auditor’s opinion), reviewed semi-annual
financial statements, and quarterly financial statements must be published on the Company’s
website.

Organizations and individuals with interest shall have the right to inspect or obtain copies of
the audited annual financial statements, reviewed semi-annual financial statements, and
quarterly financial statements during the Company’s working hours at its headquarters, subject
to a reasonable copying fee.

Reports and documents prepared by the Board of Directors, along with the audit report, must
be available at the Company’s headquarters at least ten (10) days before the opening date of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

ARTICLE 51. Annual Report

The Company must prepare and disclose the Annual Report in accordance with the provisions
of the law on securities and the securities market.

CHAPTER XVI : AUDIT OF THE COMPANY

ARTICLE 52. Audit

1.

2. The independent auditing firm shall examine, verify, prepare the audit report, and submit it to
the Board of Directors within two (02) months from the end of the fiscal year.

3. A copy of the audit report shall be attached to the Company’s annual financial statements.

4. The auditor performing the audit of the Company is entitled to attend all General Mecﬁngs of
Sharcholders and has the right to receive notices and other information related to the General
Meeting of Shareholders, which shareholders are entitled to receive, and to express opinions at
the General Meeting on matters related to the audit of the Company’s financial statements.

CHAPTER XVII : GOMPANY SEAL |

ARTICLE 53. Company Seal L L P

1. The Board of Directors shall decide on the number and form of the Company’s official seal,
which shall be engreved in accordance with legal regulations and the Company’s Charter.

2. The Board of Directors and the Managing Directors shali use and manage the Company’s seal

ARTICLE 54. Dissolution

1.
a)
b)
c)
d)
2.

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall appoint an independent auditing company
or approve a list of independent auditing firms and authorize the Board of Directors to select
one of these firms to conduct the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the following
fiscal year based on terms and conditions agreed upon with the Board of Directors. The
Company shall prepare and submit its annual financial statements to the independent auditing
firm after the end of the fiscal year.

in compliance with applicable laws.

(CHAFTER XVIII : DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION iy

The Company may be dissolved in the following cases:

Upon expiration of its operation term, including any extension;

Early dissolution as decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders;
Revocation of the Enterprise Registration Certificate;

Other cases as prescribed by law.

The early dissolution of the Company (including any extended term) shall be decided by the
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General Meeting of Shareholders and executed by the Board of Directors. This dissolution
decision must be notified to or approved by the competent authority (if required) according to
legal regulations.

ARTICLE 55. Extension of Operation

1.

The Board of Directors shall convene a General Meeting of Shareholders at least seven (07)
months before the expiration of the Company’s operation term to allow shareholders to vote on
extending the Company's operation as proposed by the Board of Directors.

The operation term shall be extended when at least 65% of the total votes of shareholders with
voting rights, present either directly or through an authorized representative at the General
Meeting, approve the extension.

ARTICLE 56. Liquidation

At least six (06) months before the expiration of the Company’s operation term or after a
dissolution decision has been made, the Board of Directors shall establish a Liquidation
Committee consisting of three (03) members. Two members shall be appointed by the General
Meeting of Shareholders, and one member shall be appointed by the Board of Directors from
an independent auditing company. The Liquidation Committee shall prepare its operating
regulations. Members of the Liquidation Committee may be selected from the Company’s
employees or independent professionals. All liquidation-related costs shall be given priority
over the Company’s other debts.

The Liquidation Committee shall notify the business registration authority of its establishment
and commencement date. From that point onward, the Liquidation Committee shall represent
the Company in all matters related to the liquidation before the Court and administrative
agencies.

The proceeds from the liquidation shall be distributed in the following order:
Liquidation expenses;

Salary debts, severance allowances, social insurance, and other benefits of employees as per
collective labor agreements and signed labor contracts;

Tax debts;
Other debts of the Company;

The remaining amount, after settling debts from (a) to (d), shall be distributed to shareholders.
Preferred shares shall be given priority in payment.

ARTICLE 57. Deadlock Among Board Members and Shareholders

Unless otherwise provided in this Charter, shareholders holding half of the outstanding voting
shares for electing Board members shall have the right to file a petition with the court to request
the dissolution of the Company based on one or more of the following points:

The Board of Directors is unable to reach a consensus in managing the Company’s afjfairs,
failing to obtain the required number of votes for the Board’s operation. -

Shareholders are unable to reach a consensus, preventing the election of Board members.

Internal disputes and division among two or more factions of shareholders make dissolution the
most beneficial option for all shareholders.

CHAPTER XIX : INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTIGN

ARTICLE 58. Internal Dispute Resolution

I

In the event of a dispute or claim related to the Company’s operations, the rights and obligations
of shareholders as stipulated by the Law on Enterprises, other legal regulations, this Charter, or
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a)

other agreements between:
A shareholder and the Company;

A shareholder and the Board of Directors, Managing Director, or other executives:
The parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute through negotiation and mediation. Unless the
dispute involves the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the
Board shall preside over the dispute resolution process and request each party to submit relevant
information within 15 working days from the date the dispute arises. If the dispute involves the
Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board, any party may request the appointment of an
independent expert as a mediator,

If no resolution is reached within six (06) weeks from the commencement of mediation or if
the mediator’s decision is not accepted by the parties, either party may refer the dispute to
economic arbitration or the economic court.

Each party shall bear its own costs related to negotiation and mediation. The costs of the court
shall be determined by the court’s ruling.

CHAPTER XX : AMENDMENT AND SUPPLEMENTATION OF THE CHARTER
ARTICLE 59. Company Charter

1.

Any amendment or supplementation of this Charter shall be considered and decided by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

[n the event that any legal regulations related to the Company’s operations are not addressed in
this Charter or if new legal regulations differ from the provisions of this Charter, such legal
regulations shall automatically apply and govern the Company’s operations.

CHAPTER XXI : EFFECTIVE DATE

ARTICLE 60. Effective Date

1.

This Charter consists of XXI chapters, 60 articles, and 03 appendices. It was approved at Floor
3, Tower C, Golden Palace Building, Me Tri Street, Me Tri Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi
City, and is fully effective.

This Charter is made into two (02) copies with equal validity and shall be kept at the Company’s
headquarters.

This Charter is the sole and official Charter of the Company.

Copies or extracts of this Charter shall be valid when signed by the Chairman of the Board of
Directors or at least one-half (1/2) of the total Board members.

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPAW/
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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CHARTER ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION

No.: SCIEC.SABS-QC.01

APPENDIX NO. 01: LIST OF FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(4s of the date of approval of the Charter on May 10, 2013)

No. Name of founding Permanent address for individuals or | Number of
shareholder head office address for organizations shares

1| Song Da 9 Joint Stock Company | Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, 2,550,000
My Dinh Commune, Tu Liem District,
Hanoi

2 | Mr. Nguyen Dang Lanh No. 22, Lane 102/27 Khuat Duy Tien, 40,000
Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi

3 | Mr. Nguyen Cong Hung Ward I, Quang Tri Town, Quang Tri 50,000

Province
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APPENDIX NO. 02: LIST OF FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(At the time of approval of the Charter on July 15, 2015)

No. Name of founding Permanent address for individuals or | Number of
B shareholder head office address for organizations shares |
1| Song Da 9 Joint Stock Company | Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, 0
My Dinh Commune, Tu Liem District,
Hanoi
2 | Mr. Nguyen Dang Lanh No. 22, Lane 102/27 Khuat Duy Tien, 31,100
| Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi
3 | Mr. Nguyen Cong Hung No 1, row 12, Parkcity urban area, Le 137,100

Trong Tan street, Ha Dong district,
Hanoi
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APPENDIX NO. 03: LIST OF FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(At the time of approval of the Charter on April 28, 2016)

No. Name of founding Permanent address for individuals or | Number of
shareholder head office address for organizations shares

1| Song Da 9 Joint Stock Company | Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, 0
My Dinh Commune, Tu Liem District,
Hanoi

2 | Mr. Nguyen Dang Lanh No. 22, Lane 102/27 Khuat Duy Tien, 10,220
Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi N

3 | Mr. Nguyen Cong Hung No 1, row 12, Parkcity urban area, Le 268,845
Trong Tan street, Ha Dong district,
Hanoi
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The 3rd floor, Tower C, Golden Palace building, Me Tri Street, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi
Tel: 04 3386 8243 | Email: enc@scigroupvn | Website: www.scigroup.yn

E SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No.: 07/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HDQT Hanoi, March 28, 2025

PROPOSAL
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
Subject: Approval and authorization for the Board of Directors to decide on several matters
within the authority of the General Shareholders' Meeting.

Respectfully to: THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF SCI E&C
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to:

- The Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14, passed by the National Assembly on June 17, 2020,
and effective from January 1, 2021, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QH1S, passed by the
National Assembly on January 11, 2022, and effective from March 1, 2022;

- The Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14, passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, amended by Law No. 56/2024/QH15, passed by
the National Assembly on November 29, 2024, and effective from January 1, 2025, and the
related implementation documents;

- The Charter of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company;

- The internal governance regulations of the company, the operational regulations of the Board
of Directors,

In order to ensure flexibility and timeliness in the management and operation of the Company
and to meet the requirements of business activities, the Board of Directors ("BOD") of SCI E&C
Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the General Sharcholders' Meeting ("GSM") for

authorization of the BOD to implement and decide on certain matters within the authority of tl
General Sharcholders' Meeting, specifically as follows:

1. The BOD respectfully submits to the GSM for approval of the list of 05 independent auditi % JOINT §

firms approved by the State Securities Commission to review the semi-annual financial statemen 2\ COMP
and audit the 2025 financial statements, as follows: % 3

- AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited.

- Branch of MOORE AISC Auditing and Informatics Services Company Limited.
- A& Auditing and Consulting Company Liniited.

- UHY Auditing and Consulting Company J.imited (UHY).

- BDO Auditing Company Limited (BDO).

At the same fime, the BOD is authorized to select one of these five auditing companies to perform:

the audit of ie financial statements;

2. /pprovai o investments in capital contributicns, estabiishment, or purchase of shares in
Companies (including Companies within the SCI Group system) to control, merge, or become
subsidiaries or affiliated companies; opening representative offices, expanding operational scale;
or divesting from subsidiaries, affiliated companies, and other investments to improve capital
efficiency for the Company's sustainable development goals.

3. Decision on the rights, obligations, authority, and responsibilities of each legal representative.

4. To promptly seize opportunities to participate in projects in Vietnam and the Lao People's
Democratic Republic, the Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Shareholders'
Meeting for approval:

4.1~ Approval of the draft Consortium Agreement between SCI Joint Stock Company (parent
company), SCI Consulting Joint Stock Company (a company specializing in construction
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consulting within SCI's subsidiary system), and SCI E&C Joint Stock Company regarding
participation in bidding and execution of bidding packages, with the main contents outlined in
Appendix 1 attached.

Authorization for the Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company to negotiate and
decide on the detailed terms of the Consortium Agreement for each specific bidding package:
scope of work, execution value, and other matters, signing the agreement, and executing the
agreement, including the adjustment and supplementation of any initially signed contents @f
any) to ensure full compliance with legal regulations, the Company’s Charter, and the
Company’s highest legal interests. The detailed contents of the Consortium Agreement for
each bidding package or specific contract will be reported by the Board of Directors to the
General Shareholders' Meeting at the next meeting.

Approval of the draft Consortium Agreement between SCI Joint Stock Company (the parent
company) and SCI E&C Joint Stock Company regarding participation in bidding and
execution of bidding packages, with the main contents outlined in Appendix 2 attached.

Authorization for the Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company to negotiate and
decide on the detailed terms of the Consortium Agreement for each specific bidding package:
scope of work, execution value, and other matters, signing the agreement, and executing the
agreement, including the adjustment and supplementation of any initially signed contents @af
any) to ensure full compliance with legal regulations, the Company’s Charter, and the
Company’s highest legal interests. The detailed contents of the Consortium Agreement for
each bidding package or specific contract will be reported by the Board of Directors to the
General Shareholders' Meeting at the next meeting,

Approval of the authorization for the Board of Directors of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company to
negotiate and decide on the detailed terms, signing, and execution of economic
contracts/agreements with Employers, including the adjustment of any initi
contents (if any) to ensure full compliance with legal regulations, the Company:
the Company’s highest legal interests, to seize timely opportunities and execyte t
based on the Employer's requirements. The Board of Directors will report the 3{?

of these matters to the General Shareholders' Meeting at the next meeting. T

Shareholders.
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APPENDIX 1

MAIN CONTENT OF THE CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT

I. Miembers of the Consortium

L.
2.
3.

4.

SCI Joint Stock Company: Parent company
SCI E&C Joint Stock Company
SCI Consulting Joint Stock Company: A company specializing in construction

consulting within the SCI Group of subsidiary companies

The members agree that the name of the Consortium will be: “SCI Consortium.” In

this agreement, the term “Consertium” will be understood as SCI Consortium.
fI.  Responsibility Allocation

The parties agree to authorize SCI Joint Stock Company to act as the leading member of
the Consortium. The members of the Consortium agree to assign responsibilities for performing
the tasks under the agreement as detailed in the table below:

No.

Company name

Assigned Tasks

SCt Joint Stock
Company

(Leadiuig member of
the Consortium —
Party A}

- Sign the bid letter. Sign all documents, papers, and

memorandums of understanding for transactions with the
Employer during the bidding process;

- Lead the negotiation process and finalize the contract with the

Employer, together with representatives of the Parties;

- Manage contract implementation. Represent the Consortium in

direct dealings with the Employer and relevant parties
regarding contract execution, including signing letters,
documents, and related materials.

- Represent the Consortium in dealings with government

agencies in Laos (Tax authorities, etc.) to resolve contract-
related issues.

- Provide guarantees for the Employer according to the

agreement

- Represent the Consortium, issue invoices for completed work

to the Employer, and receive advances/payments from the
Employer. Distribute and pay the corresponding execution
value to the Parties.

- Have the right to withhold the amount paid by the Employer to

ensure the guarantee requirement from the bank and secure
obligations/responsibilities to the Employer according to the
agreement

- Purchase insurance for the construction during the building

process.

SCI Consulting Joint
Stock Company
(Consortium
member — Party B)

- Surveying for topography, geology, and hydrology.

- Technical design (Basic Design).

- Detailed design (Detailed Design).

- Performing the role of supervising the contractor's construction

work.
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Ne. Company name Assigned Tasks
SCI E&C Joint - Procurement, LOIlslI‘UCtIOIl installation, testing, commissioning,
3 Stock Company and fault correction for the project according to the agreement
) (Consortium - Purchase of risk insurance for equipment and personnel
member — Party C) involved in construction.

.

The Parties agree that:

Each party will be responsible under the agreement and applicable laws for their respective
scope of work. Party A (the leading member, representing the Consortium) is responsible
to the Employer for the execution of the contract/agreement, while the Consortium
members (Party B and Party C) are responsible to Party A and the Employer for their
respective scopes of work. For this purpose, Party A has the right to coordinate all or part
of the scope of work of Party B and Party C (o Party A or a third party if Party B and Party
C do not meet the work requirements under the agresment or for the common benefit of
the parties.

Party B and Party C are responsible for issuing invoices corresponding to the value they
perform for the leading member of the Consortium.

Guarantee fees for guarantees/warranties under the agreement, insurance purchase fees
during the construction process will be allocated according to the performance ratio of
Party B and Party C.

Corporate Income Tax (CIT) will be allocated according to the performance ratio of the
parties. Personal Income Tax (PIT) will be based on the personal declaration of the parties.
Any exchange rate differences (if any) when Party A receives payments from the Employer
and makes payments to Party B and Party C will be allocated among the Parties based on
the distribution of the work scope.

Any deductions made by the Employer (if any) will be allocated among the Parties based
on the agreement or to the Party at fault for non-performance of the contract.

The value for the scope of work of the Parties will be calculated and added to the

Consortium Agresicent after the negotiation is completed, the Employer awards the_'

contract, and the contract is signed. Depending o the specific nature of each bidding
package, the Parties will agree on the cost-sharing atio between Party A and the other
Parties.

Establishment oi the Project Management Board

To facilitate the management and exccution of the coniract in the event that the contract is
awarded by the Emplover, the Parties agree to:

Esteblish & Project M:anagement Board under e leading member oy the Consortium — SCI

Joint Stock Company, operating according to the functions and tasks assigned by SCI Joint Stock
Company, with its ovn seal.

The o
+

—+4-

+ +

The Parties have the right to appoint personnel to participate in the Management Board.
rganizational structure of the Management Board will include:

01 D:iector of the Management Board.

From 01 to 03 Deputy Directors of the Management Board.

Furnctional departments.

The Management Board represents the leading mermnber of the Consortium (SCI Joint Stock

Company) and SCI Consortium to exchange and sign documents/papers with the Employer
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' CE SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY

/ Employer's representative, Consultants, and other relevant parties to implement the
contract work at the construction site, such as: Receiving instructions from the Employer,
handing over the site, acceptance documents/payment milestones, submitting
subcontractors, suppliers, meeting minutes, reports, etc.

Representing the leading member of the Consortium (SCI Joint Stock Company) and SCI
Consortium to exchange and sign documents/papers with individuals and competent
government agencies of Laos and Vietnam to implement and resolve issues related to the
Project, such as: Local communities in the project area, government authorities at the
commune, district, provincial, ministry levels, forestry agencies, police, customs agencies,
etc.

Performing other tasks as assigned by SCI Joint Stock Company within the authority of the

leading member of the Consortium or as mutually agreed by SCI Consortium.,
General Terms

The Parties commit to fully perform the terms of the Consortium Agreement. Any
amendments or additions must be agreed upon in writing by all the Parties.

The Consortium Agreement shall terminate under the following circumstances:
SCI Consortium is not awarded the contract;

The Parties have fulfilled their responsibilities and obligations under the Consortium
Agreement and the EPC contract;

The Parties mutually agree to terminate the agreement.
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APPENDIX 2

MAIN CONTENT OF THE CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT

L Members of the Consortium
SCI Joint Stock Company: Parent company
SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

. The members agree that the name of the Consortium will be: “SCI Consortium.” In

this agreement, the term “Consortium” will be understood as SCI Consortium.

II.  Responsibility Allocation

The parties agree to authorize SCI Joint Stock Company to act as the leading member of
the Consortium. The members of the Consortium agree to assign responsibilities for performing

the tasks under the agreement as detailed in the table below:

No.

Company name

Assigned Tasks

SCI Joint Stock
Company

(Leading
member of the
Consortium —

Party A)

Sign the bid letter. Sign all documents, papers, and
memorandums of understanding for transactions with the
Employer during the bidding process.

Lead the negotiation process and finalize the contract with
the Employer, together with representatives of the Parties.

Manage EPC contract implementation.

Represent the Consortium in direct dealings with the
Employer and relevant parties regarding EPC contract
execution, including signing letters, documents, and related
materials.

Represent the Consortium in dealings with government
agencies in Laos (Tax authorities, etc.) to resolve EPC
contract-related issues.

Provide guarantees for the Employer according to the EPC
contract.

Represent the Consortium, issue invoices for completed work
to the Employer, and receive advances/payments from the
Employer. Distribute and pay the corresponding execution
value to the Parties.

Have the right to withhold the amount paid by the Employer
to ensure the guarantee requirement from the bank and secure
obligations/responsibilities to the Employer according to the
EPC contract.

Surveying for topography, geology, and hydrology.
Technical design (Basic Design).

Detailed design (Detailed Design).

Performing the role of supervising the contractor's
construction work.

t'i/e
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meg SCIE&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Company name Assigned Tasks

- Procurement, construction, installation, testing,
SCLE&C Joint ;({)imin(s{s’xlqllzr}g, and cf.aulttcotrlrcc(?.o?t (])gf Izgeé’l'oi(?‘(:t t(s.cope and
Stock Company etailed 1 fe s according to the dra ontract);

_ - Construction insurance during the building process,
(Consortium import/export, licensing, and purchase of explosives,
member — Party electrical work, and mine clearance.

B)

- Purchase of risk insurance for equipment and personnel
involved in construction,

+

The Parties agree that:

Each party will be responsible under the agreement and applicable laws for their respective
scope of work. Party A (the leading member, representing the Consortium) is responsible
to the Employer for the execution of the contract/agreement, while the Consortium
members (Party B) are responsible to Party A and the Employer for their respective scopes
of work. For this purpose, Party A has the right to coordinate all or part of the scope of
work of Party B to Party A or a third party if Party B do not meet the work requirements
under the agreement or for the common benefit of the parties.

Party B are responsible for issuing invoices corresponding to the value they perform for
the leading member of the Consortium.

Guarantee fees for guarantees under the agreement, insurance purchase fees during the
construction process will be allocated according to the performance ratio of Party B.
Corporate Income Tax (CIT) will be allocated according to the performance ratio of the
parties. Personal Income Tax (PIT) will be based on the personnel declaration of the parties.
Any exchange rate differences (if any) when Party A receives payments from the Employer
and makes payments to Party B will be allocated among the Parties based on the
distribution of the work scope.

Any deductions made by the Employer (if any) will be allocated among the Parties based
on the agreement or to the Party at fault for non-performance of the contract.

The value for the scope of work of the Parties will be calculated and added to the
Consortium Agreement after the negotiation is completed, the Employer awards the
contract, and the contract is signed. Depending on the specific nature of each bidding
package, the Parties will agree on the cost-sharing ratio between Party A and the other
Parties.

Establishment of the Project Management Board

To facilitate the management and execution of the contract in the event that the contract is
awarded by the Employer, the Parties agree to:

Establish a Project Management Board under the leading member of the Consortium — SCI

Joint Stock Company, operating according to the functions and tasks assigned by SCI Joint Stock
Company, with its own seal.

The Parties have the right to appoint personnel to participate in the Management Board.

The organizational structure of the Management Board will include:

+
+

01 Director of the Management Board.
From 01 to 03 Deputy Directors of the Management Board.

\‘\y
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H SCI E&C JOINT STOCK COMPANY

fx.

1.3,

1.4,

Functional departments.

The Management Board represents the leading member of the Consortium (SCI Joint Stock
Company) and SCI Consortium to exchange and sign documents/papers with the Employer
/ Employer's representative, Consultants, and other relevant partics to implement the
contract work at the construction site, such as: Receiving instructions from the Employer,
handing over the site, acceptance documents/payment milestones, submitting
subcontractors, suppliers, meeting minutes, reports, etc.

Representing the leading member of the Consortium (SCI Joint Stock Company) and SCI
Consortium to exchange and sign documents/papers with individuals and competent
government agencies of Laos and Vietnam to implement and resolve issues related to the
Project, such as: Local communities in the project area, government authorities at the
commune, district, provincial, ministry levels, forestry agencies, police, customs agencies,
ete.

Performing other tasks as assigned by SCI Joint Stock Company within the authority of the
leading member of the Consortium or as mutually agreed by SCI Consortium.,

General Terms

The Parties commit to fully perform the terms of the Consortium Agreement. Any
amendments or additions must be agreed upon in writing by all the Parties.

The Consortium Agreement shall terminate under the following circumstances:
SCI Consortium is not awarded the contract:

The Parties have fulfilled their responsibilities and obligations under the Consortium
Agreement and the EPC contract;

The Parties mutually agree to terminate the agreement.
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No.: 08/2025/TTr-SCIEC-HBQT Hanoi, March 28, 2025
PROPOSAL

(On the Election of Board of Directors Members for the 2025-2030 Term)

Pursuant to:

- Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly on June 17, 2020,
effective from January 1, 2021;

- Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist Repub{zc
of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, and the related implementation documents:;

- The Charter of SCI E&C Joint Stock Company,

- The internal governance regulations of the company, the operational regulations of the
Board of Directors;

I. Election of Board of Directors Members fer the 2025-2030 Term:

- Number of Board of Directors members to be elected: 05 (Five) members.
Criteria for selecting Board of Directors members: as specified in Article 155 of the
Enterprise Law and Article 26 of the Company's Charter.

- The structure of the Board of Directors must ensure that at least one-third (1/3) of the total
number of Board of Directors members are non-executive members and there are at least one
(01) independent Board of Directors members.

II. Approval of the list of candidates for the Board of Directors for the 2025-2030 term

- Based on the nomination and election results from shareholders or shareholder groups as
specified in the Company's Charter;

- Based on the capabilities, quahtles, reputation, and conditions to fulfill the responsibilities
and duties of Board of Directors members if elected; and aligning with the criteria for Board
of Uirectors members as stipulated in the Charter and legal regulations, the Board of
Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders the list of candidates for the Board
of Direstors for the 2025-2030 term, including:

1. Mr.: Phan Thanh Hai
2. Mr.: Luu Minh thanh
3. Mrs.: Mai Thi Van Anh
4, Mr.: L& Huy Thanh

(The candidates' resumes are attached to this report)

In case sharehoiders/shareholder groups are eligible to nominate candidates and the candidate
profiles are valid, the above-mentioned list of candidates will be updated, supplemented, and
submitted at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

itespectfuily submitted for the consideration and approval of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Sincerely thank./.




SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

‘ /&. (For candidates nominated for election as members of the Board of Directors)

|. Full Name: Phan Thanh Hai Gender: Male
2. Date of Birth: 07/01/1984 Place of Birth: Quy Chau District — Nghé An Province
3. Nationality: Vietnamese

4. ID/Passport Number: 040084000004 Date of issue 30/10/2022 Place of issue: Police Department for
Registration and Management of Residence and National Data on Population

5. Address: Pearl 1 Building, M§ Dinh Pearl Apartment, | Chau Vin Liém Street, Nam Tir Liém District,
Ha Noi City.

6. Phone number: Email; haipt@scigroup.vn

7. Educational background: Bachelor's Degree.

8. Professional qualifications: Bachelor's Degree in Economics

9. Work experience:

Work History, Occupation, and Positions Held

iod
Ferig (Job Title, Company) Dotg )
+ From 8/2007 to 08/2010 FPT Information Systems Co., Ltd
: . :

+ From 9/2010 to 8/2016 Song Da 9 Construction and Investment Joint Stock

Company

hi I int St

+ From 08/2016 to 11/2017 Chief Accountant, SCI E&C Joint Stock

Company
+ From 11/2017 to 04/2018 Deputy Director, SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

Director, SCI E&C Joint Stock Company
Member of the Board of Directors, SCI E&C Joint
Stock Company

+ From 05/2018 to 2019
+ From 2020 to Present

10. Current position at SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): Chairman of the Board of Directors

11. Positions currently held at other organizations:

Business
Shareholding/Capital
Registration | Date/Place of . ) g' P
Company Name | Address . Position Contribution
Certificate Issue
Percentage
Number

12. Number of shares held (as of the date of registration) in SCI E&C Joint Stock Company:
7.953.645 shares, accounting for 26,08 % of the charter capital, of which:

+ Representative SCI Joint stock company owns: 7.927.789 shares

+ Individuals holding: 25.856 shares



13. Commitments on holding (if any): None

®
14. List of related people of the declarant :

No, Name of ID/Passport Number (for Number of Relationship
Individual/Organization individuals) or Business Shares Held, with the
Registration Certificate Ownership Declarant
Number, Operation License Percentage in
or equivalent legal the Charter
document (for Capital of the
organizations), Date of Joint Stock
Issue, Place of Issue Company (if
any)
I | Phan Thanh Cudng 045057006350 0 Father
2 | Nguyén Tuyét Thu 044159003958 0 Kifethes
3 | Phan Khénh Linh 040183006409 0 Elder sister
4 | Phan Thanh Nam 040092006840 0 Younger
Brother
5 | DA Thj Thu Hoai 036185000014 0 Wife
6 | Phan Hai Phong 001212014328 0 Son
7 | Phan B3 Hoai An 001317001465 0 Daughter
8 | D3 Vin Ninh 036054010409 0 Father-in-
law
9 | Mai Pai Phuong 040082034821 0 Fmther—in-
aw
10 | Té Thi Thanh Huyén 040195009899 0 Sister-in-law

15. Related interests with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

16. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

17. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

before the law if they are found to be incorrect.

DECLARANT
(Signature, Full name)

CERTIFICATION BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES
OR WORKPLACE (IF REQUIRED)

* List of related people of the declarant according to Clause 23, Article 4 of the Enterprise Law 2020, Clause 46, Article 4 of the
Securities Law 2019,



1. Full Name: Luu Minh Thanh
2. Date of Birth: 25/07/1991

3. Nationality: Vietnamese

0 SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence — Freedom — Happiness

RESUME

Gender: Male

Place of Birth: Quang Tri Province

(For candidates nominated for election as members of the Board of Directors)

4. ID/Passport Number: 045091003365 Date of issue 22/1 1/2022 Place of issue: Police Department of
Administrative Management on Social Order

5. Address: Number 05, Nguyén Viét Xuan Street, Ward 1, Quang Tri Town, Quang Tri Province.

6. Phone number; 02433868243

Email: enc@scigroup.vn

7. Educational background: Bachelor's Degree.

8. Professional qualifications: Civil Engineer in Waterworks Construction

9. Work experience:

Work History, Occupation, and Positions Held

Trung Nam Joint Stock Company.

iod N
rene (Job Title, Company) ote

Field Engi -C i kag .10 -La
+ From 05/2015 to ield ngn}e(’ar OnStI‘}lCtIOD Package No. 10 - La
07/2016 Son Tuy Loan Highway, HCM Road.

Song Da 9 Joint Stock Company
1 ical Planning D - i

+ From 08/2016 to Head ofTechnéc;al D;;na::g Plzp:gment Sunrise
02/2017 Y BBl

05/2020

+ From 03/2017 to Deputy Director
04/2018 Phu Thanh My Joint Stock Company.
+ From 04/2018 to Director

Phu Thanh My Joint Stock Company.

+ From 05/2020 to
04/2022

Deputy Project Manager for Nam Sam 3 Project
SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

+ From 05/2022 to
12/2022

Deputy Director (In charge of Construction)
SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

+ From 01/2023 to
Present

Director, SCI E&C Joint Stock Company

10. Current position at SCI E&C Joint Stock Company: Director

11. Positions currently held at other organizations:

Company Name

Address

Business
Registration | Date/Place of
Certificate Issue

Number

Shareholding/Capital
Position | Contribution
Percentage




12. Number of shares held (as of the date of registration) in SCI E&C Joint Stock Company:
7.630.320 shares, accounting for 25 % of the charter capital, of which:

+ Representative SCI Joint stock company owns: 7.623.000 shares

+ Individuals holding: 7.320 shares
13. Commitments on holding (if any): None

14. List of related people of the declarant:

No. Name of ID/Passport Number (for Number of Relationship,
Individual/Organization individuals) or Business Shares Held, with the
Registration Certificate Ownership Declarant
Number, Operation License Percentage in
or equivalent legal the Charter
document (for Capital of the
organizations), Date of Joint Stock
Issue, Place of Issue Company (if
any)
| | Tran Thi Ai Thuy 045191009242 0 Wife
2 | LuuAiLinh None 0 Daughter
3 | Tran Thj Pinh 045159000427 0 Mother
4 | Luu birc Trung 044078008381 0 Elder Brother
5 | Tran Viét Phong 045066000885 0 Fathm
| 6 | Poin Thi My 045168001250 0 M%‘l‘&t‘“ 1

15. Related interests with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None
16. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None
17. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

I hereby certify that the above declarations are completely truthful, and I take full responsibility
before the law if they are found to be incorrect.

CERTIFICATION BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES DECLARANT
OR WORKPLACE (IF REQUIRED) (Signature, Full name)

Luu Minh Thanh

* List of related people of the declarant according to Clause 23, Article 4 of the Enterprise Law 2020, Clause 46, Article 4 of the
Securities Law 2019,
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(For candidates nominated for election as members of the Board of Directors)

|. Full Name: Mai Thi Vén Anh Gender: Female
2. Date of Birth: 20/02/1989 Place of Birth: Thanh Héa Province
3. Nationality: Vietnamese

4. ID/Passport Number: 038189023502 Date of issue 26/05/2022 Place of issue: Police Department of
Administrative Management on Social Order

5. Address: My Pinh pearl 2 Building, 01 Chau Vin Liém Street, Nam Tur Liém District, Hanoi
6. Phone number: 02433 868243 Email: enc@scigroup.vn

7. Educational background: Bachelor's Degree.

8. Professional qualification: Bachelor’s in Finance and Banking

9. Work experience:

Work History, Occupation, and Positions Held
Peri
eriod (Job Title, Company) Note
ff int St
+ From 05/2011 to 04/2016 Staff member, Thang Long Cement Joint Stock
Company
Specialist, Contract Economics Department, SCI
+ From 05/2016 to 11/20 y
ramisy201y 1o ] 17 E&C Joint Stock Company
Deputy Manager, Procurement Department, SCl
+ 12/2017 to 08/2019
Finm 1202017 0. 0820 E&C Joint Stock Company
+ From 09/2019 to 03/2022 Manager, Procurement Department, SCI E&C Joint
Stock Company
+ From 04/2022 to Present Deputy Director, SCI E&C Joint Stock Company
10. Current position at SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): Deputy Director
11. Positions currently held at other organizations:
Business
1 Idi i
Company Registration | Date/Place of . ® 1are!10 .mg/Capltal
Address . Position | Contribution
Name Certificate Issue Vercenliis
Number : '8
==

12. Number of shares held (as of the date of registration) in SCI E&C Joint Stock Company: 0 shares,
accounting for 0% of the charter capital, of which:

+ Represented by (name of the organization as State-owned/strategic shareholder/other
OFGANIZATION: . .evvaeeeeiireeiiane e e

+ Individuals holding: 0 shares

13. Commitments on holding (if any): None




14. List of related people of the declarant

No. Name of ID/Passport Number (for Number of Relationship
Individual/Organization individuals) or Business Shares Held, with the
Registration Certificate Ownership Declarant
Number, Operation License Percentage in
or equivalent legal the Charter
document (for Capital of the
organizations), Date of Joint Stock
Issue, Place of Issue Company (if
any)
1 | Mai Htru Tém 038062002412 0 Father
2 | Phan Thi Nghin 038163029193 0 Mother
3 | Mai Thi Tuén 038186012433 0 Elder sister
4 | Trinh Xuén Phic 079080014168 0 Brother-in-
law
5 | Chau Van Thanh 040051008649 0 Father-in-law
6 | Truong Thj Lan 035154008258 Mother-in-
law
7 | Mai Thé Anh 038091000015 0 Younger
Brother
8 | Phan Thuy Trang 038192008539 0 Younger
Sister-in-law
9 | Chau Vin Thanh 038079002383 17.500 Husband
10 | Chau Ha Linh None 0 Daughter

15. Related interests with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

16. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

17. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

I hereby certify that the above declarations are completely truthful, and I take full responsibilitg;

the law if they are found to be incorrect.

DECLARANT
(Signature, Full name)

’/‘W“

Mai Thi Vin Anh

CERTIFICATION BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES
OR WORKPLACE (IF REQUIRED)

" List of related people of the declarant according to Clause 23, Article 4 of the Enterprise Law 2020, Clause 46, Article 4 of the
Securities Law 2019.
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(For candidates nominated for election as members of the Board of Directors)

1. Full name: Nguyen Duy Toan Gender: Male

2. Date of Birth: 08/12/1960 Place of Birth: La Khe, Ha Dong, Ha Noi

3. Nationality: Vietnamese

4. ID/Passport Number: 010060000007 Date of issue 01/03/2021 Place of issue: Police Department
for Administrative management of social order

5. Permanent address; No.52 Alley 2, Thai Thinh 1 Lane, Thinh Quang Ward, Dong Da District,
Hanoi City

6. Phone number: 0989632889 Email: toannd60@gmail.com

7. Education background: Master's Degree at Thuyloi University (Water Resources University)

8. Professional Qualifications: Master of Engineering Irrigation Construction

9. Work experience:

Work History, Occupation, and Positions Held
(Job Title, Company)
+ From 6/1984 to 6/2012 | Power Engineering Consulting 1 Joint Stock Company
(PECC1). Responsible for engineering hydropower
projects. Positions held:
- Deputy Head of Hydropower Engineering Team 1
- Deputy Head of Son La Hydropower Engineering
Team
- Deputy Head of Tuyen Quang Hydropower
Engineering Team
- Deputy Head of Son La Hydropower Engineering

Period Note

Team
+ From 7/2012 to Trung Son Hydropower Company Limited. Positions held:
12/2020 - Deputy Head of Trung Son Hydropower Project

Management Board
- Head of Project Engineering Appraisal
+ From 2021 to Present | Retired under State policy.
Currently acting as a consulting expert for various
hydropower and renewable energy projects in Vietnam and
Laos.
10. Current position at SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

11. Positions currently held at other organizations: None

Business
I ing/Capi
Company Address Registration | Date/Place of Peiltion 8 lalg::gi;l;zgi'oipltnl
Name Certificate Issue Perce mle
Number ereentas

12. Number of shares held (as of the date of registration) in SCI E&C Joint Stock Company: 0



shares, accounting for 0 % of the charter capital, of which

+ Representative (name of the organization as State-owned/strategic shareholder/other organization)

+ Individuals holding: ...... shares

13. Commitments on holding (if any): ........oevimiiiniiiiiii

*
14. List of related people of the declarant :

b
ID/Passport Number (for Suber of
o ; Shares Held,
individuals) or Business .
: ; ; Ownership
Registration Certificate . ? :
. . Percentage in Relationship
No. Name of Number, Operation .
Individual/Organization | License or equivalent legal e Ehnrter withdie
'8 q ga Capital of the Declarant
document (for :
N Joint Stock
organizations), Date of Company (if
Issue, Place of Issue i
any)
1 | Nguyén Thanh Huyén 034175022458 0 Wife
2 | Nguyén Tudn Minh 001203035570 0 Son
3 | Nguyén Hai Minh 001204020453 0 Son
4 | Nguyén Thj Hién 010159000012 0 Elder sister
5 | Nguyén Hoang Pao 001066014508 0 Younger sister,
6 | Nguyén Thi Dung 001171008292 0 Younger sister

15. Related interests with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None
16. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None
17. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

the law if they are found to be incorrect.

CERTIFICATION BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES
OR WORKPLACE (IF REQUIRED)

DECLARANT
(Signature, Full name)

* List of related people of the declarant according to Clause 23, Article 4 of the Enterprise Law 2020, Clause 46, Article 4 of the
Seeurities Law 2019.



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
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(For candidates nominated for election as members of the Board of Directors)

1. Full Name: Lé Huy Thanh...........coeiniiin Gender; Male .iivisvissnuisss s
2. Date of Birth: 04/04/1991...cooeiiiiiiiiiiiieine Place of Birth: Hai Duong Province

3. Nationality: Vietnamese

4. ID/Passport Number: 030091000024 Date of issue 01/05/2021 Place of issue: Ha Noi

5. Address: No.12, Alley 61, Nguy€n Son Street, Ngoc Lam, Long Bién District, Hanoi City
6. Phone number: 0976.960.808 Email: huythanhle.vn@gmail.com

7. Education Background: Bachelor's Degree.

8. Professional Qualifications: Auditor

9. Work experience:

Work History, Occupation, and

Positions Held (Job Title, Company) Note

Period

6/2013-6/2019 Auditor — Vaco Auditing Company
Limited.

7/2019-4/2020 Financial Specialist — Sun Group Joint
Stock Company.

5/2020-6/2021 Deputy Audit Manager — Branch of
Moore Aisc Auditing and Informatics
Services Company Limited

7/2021- Present Deputy General Director — VSA
Auditing and Consulting Company
Limited

10. Current position at SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

11. Positions currently held at other organizations:

Business
Sharel ing/Capi
Company Registration | Date/Place of ;. h ,mld, g/Capital
Address \ Position | Contribution
Name Certificate Issue
Percentage
Number




VSA
Auditing and
Consulting
Company
Limited

Asia Training
and
Consulting
Company
Limited

360 Office
Joint  Stock
Company

14th Floor,
Viet A
Building, No.
9 Duy Tan
Street, Dich
Vong Héu
Ward, Céiu
Gidy District,
Hanoi City,
Vietnam

14th Floor,
Viet A
Building, No.
9 Duy Tan
Street, Dich
Vong Héau
Ward, Cau
Gidy District,
Hanoi City,
Vietnam

14th Floor,
Viet A
Building, No.
9 Duy Tan
Street, Dich
Vong Hiu
Ward, Cau
Gifly District,
Hanoi City,
Vietnam

0108781831

0110168661

0110392712

13/06/2019-
Hanoi City

02/11/2022-
Hanoi City

20/06/2023

Deputy
General
Director

Director

None

40%

50%

50%

12. Number of shares held (as of the date of registration) in SCI E&C Joint Stock Company: 0 shares,

accounting for 0 % of the charter capital, of which:

+ Representative (name of the organization as State-owned/strategic shareholder/other organization)

owns: None

+ Individuals holding: None

13. Commitments on holding (if any): None

*
14. List of related people of the declarant :



No: Name of ID/Passport Number (for Number of Relationship
Individual/Organization individuals) or Business Shares Held, with the
Registration Certificate Ownership Declarant
Number, Operation License Percentage in
or equivalent legal the Charter
document (for Capital of the
organizations), Date of SCI E&C Joint
Issue, Place of Issue Stock Company
(if any)
1. | bing Khanh Hoa 001191043761 None Wife
2. | Lé Hoai An 001318004081 INone Daughter
3. | Lé Huy Khanh 001220017303 None Son
4, | Lé Huy Binh 030054003188 None Father
5. | Pham Thi Van 030159003736 None Mother
6. | Lé&Huy Tuén 030083007292 None Elder Brother
7. | Nguyén Thi Thanh Thiy 030186002683 None Sister-in-law
8. | Dang Tién Minh 001068036631 None Father-in-law
9. | Pang Thi Lién 001171041070 None m‘*‘e“m‘

15. Related interests with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None
16. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

17. Conflicts of interest with SCI E&C Joint Stock Company (if any): None

1 hereby certify that the above declarations are completely truthful, and I take full responsibility
before the law if they are found to be incorrect.

CERTIFICATION BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES
OR WORKPLACE (IF REQUIRED)

DECLARANT
(Signature, Full name)

* List of related people of the declarant according to Clause 23, Article 4 of the Enterprise Law 2020, Clause 46, Article 4 of the
Securities Law 2019,
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